Tennis West

Australin’s Favourite




Tennis West
PO Box 116
BURSWOOD WA 6100

State Tennis Centre
Victoria Park Drive
BURSWOOD WA 6100

P: (08) 6462 8300
F: (08) 9361 1500

www.tennis.com.au/wa

info@tenniswest.com.au

tennis

RaTLE] A Y

Corporate Profile

President’s Report

Chief Executive Officer’s Report

Tennis Australia Report

Membership & Clubs

Community Tennis

olvlTolol T w

Athlete Development

12

Coach Development

14

The 100 Club

16

Regional Tennis

17

Tennis League & Tournaments

21

Facilities & Tennis 2020

25

Sponsor Acknowledgements

26

Women in Tennis

27

Tennis Officials Australia— WA Division

29

Tennis Seniors Western Australia

31

State Tennis Centre

33

Office Bearers, Life Members & Committees

34

Significant Achievements

36

Tournament Results and Awards

38

Treasurer’s Report

46

Financial Statements

47

Independent Audit Report

71

Page 2


http://www.tennis.com.au/wa
mailto:info@tenniswest.com.au

TENNIS WEST

Corporate Profile &

tEI'II'IE';.i

RaTLRI AT Y

Tennis West is Western Australia’s governing body for
tennis, and manages all aspects of the sport, from elite
player development, to growing participation within the
affiliated club network and community.

Tennis West is headquartered at the State Tennis Centre
on the Burswood Peninsula, with affiliated bodies located
as far north as Kununurra, south as Albany and as far
inland as Kalgoorlie.

HERITAGE

Tennis in Western Australia had its beginnings in the
family homestead environment in both metropolitan and
country areas. With the gold rushes in the last decade of
the nineteenth century came the growth of tennis clubs.
After two unsuccessful attempts a tennis association was
established to arrange inter-club competition and
determine the status of tournaments.

On 17 April 1903, a motion was passed ‘that an Association
be formed to be called the Lawn Tennis Association of
Western Australia (LTAWA)'. The new LTAWA then
confirmed its decision, on 14 October 1904, to join the
Australasian Lawn Tennis Association (ALTA).

[t was in 1912 that the name Western Australian Lawn
Tennis Association (WALTA) was adopted. In the 1990s, in
keeping with a move by the National body to use the
trading name Tennis Australia, the acronym WALTA was
cast aside for Tennis West.

During the 1980s, the prospect of the Association having
its own offices and tennis complex always appeared to be
just around the corner. On 20 September 1994, the new
State Tennis Centre was officially launched on the
Burswood Peninsula.

From uncertain beginnings, with the strains of the war and
the division between amateurs and professionals, the
Association has grown from a few small clubs conducting
winter pennant tennis to administering one of the state’s
major sports.

[Reference: Phillips, Harry (1995) Tennis West: A History of
the Western Australian Lawn Tennis Association from the
1890s to the 1990s. Sydney: Playwright Publishing]

VISION STATEMENT

A thriving tennis culture in Western Australia

MISSION STATEMENT

To create a comprehensive support system for tennis in
Western Australia
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ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

The Tennis West Council consists of members

representing all Affiliated Tennis Clubs in WA. The number
of representatives from a Metropolitan Club is derived
from the number of members the Club has during that
financial year.

The Country Clubs are represented by Zone Delegates.
These delegates are appointed by the individual Tennis
Zone committee. The number of Zone delegates is
derived from the number of Club members within the
Zone. The Tennis West Council meets on a bi-monthly
basis.

The Tennis West Board of Directors is made up of 9
members. The Board of Directors is voted to office by the
Council on a 2-year tenure. Any vacancies arising are
appointed by the existing Board of Directors to a casual
position until that position comes up for renewal at the
next AGM. The Tennis West Board of Directors meets on a
monthly basis.

The Tennis West Chief Executive Officer is appointed by
the Board to oversee the operations of the Association.

COUNCIL

l
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CED

Departments
Community Tennis
Player Development
Events & Marketing
Tennis Competition
Coach Development & Talent Identification
Finance & Information Technology
Media & Communication
State Tennis Centre




| hereby present the 108th Annual
Report, including the Audited
Financial Statements for the year
ended 30 June 2011.

This, the second term of my Tennis West presidency saw the focus
remain firmly on grassroots tennis. Tennis Australia has
committed increased funding to our Community Tennis
operations and this has enabled us to put another Community
Tennis Officer on the road (Paul Oldfield) as well undertake other
initiatives in the area.

There has been considerable focus during the year on
modernizing and improving Tennis West's governance. Following
a Tennis Australia funded governance-benchmarking exercise,
undertaken by KPMG across a number of Member Associations,
the Board committed to working with the conclusions therein and
addressing the governance reform that is required of the
organization. This has involved careful consideration of the way
the Board works, its relationship with Members (Council) and the
constitution that embodies many of the governance
arrangements in place. This is work in progress, and is being
undertaken in consultation with clubs and other stakeholders.

The financial result for the year, showing a net surplus of $133,915
was close to budget and a very satisfactory performance. Tennis
West is appreciative of the financial support provided by all its
sponsors and its main funding partners. Grant income from Tennis
Australia and the Department of Sport and Recreation exceeded
last year’s levels, and Tennis West was able to invest this in
additional programming and much needed capital works at the
State Tennis Centre.

The year was notable for the speculation on the future of the
State Tennis Centre. With the CEO Andrew Stanbury, | have had
regular contact with the State Government to keep abreast of the
discussion around the new oval stadium for Perth and plans for it
to be located at Burswood. The Board is making preparations in
the event that this location results in the State Government asking
Tennis West to re-locate. We still have 37 years to run on our lease,
are in a strong position to secure a good deal for tennis and have
the assurance from government that this is what they will deliver.

Reforms to Tennis League were trialed with the support of
Council, including shorter seasons for greater player flexibility. As
promised we then reviewed these reforms at the summer
season’s end, undertaking a comprehensive survey of the changes
that was, pleasingly, completed by well over 700 people. It was
clear from the response that a return to previous formats was, in
the main, preferred. This has been implemented for the 2011-12
season. The process, informed by the GEMBA research was worth
undertaking nonetheless.

I would like to thank BGC, new naming rights sponsor of Tennis
League with the Brikmakers brand, for their support and
commitment to the sport in WA. BGC is an iconic name in the WA
business sector and we hope to build a very successful
partnership with them over many years. There were some
tremendous highlights during the year in Brikmakers Tennis
League. The State League Finals were won by Hensman Park TC
and Cottesloe TC in the Men’s and Women’s events respectively.
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Tennis West President, Dean Williams

Hensman Park TC deserves special mention. Their men'’s team
looked weaker on paper than in recent years but they showed
tremendous spirit in taking the title, a fifth for the club in this
event in six years.

Pro Circuit events at Kalgoorlie and Esperance again brought
top class tennis to regional WA, which gives the sport
statewide a real boost. Matt Ebden followed up his success of
the previous year with some great performances on the ATP
circuit. He continues to improve his world ranking and is not
too far short of the top. Of course, Casey Dellacqua’s success
in winning the Mixed Doubles at the French Open was a great
reward for her after an injury-ravaged couple of years, and it
was another great fillip for WA tennis — the first Grand Slam
title for a West Australian since Liz Smylie back in 1985.

The WA Tennis Industry Awards Night in May was at the South
Perth Yacht Club, which turned out to be a fantastic venue for
the event. It was a great night in a wonderful setting. We said
a special farewell at the event to long-time Tennis League
administrator (and Women In Tennis committee stalwart)
Deanne Maloney, who will be greatly missed by all involved in
League.

| wish to thank the Board and the staff of Tennis West for their
support and their contribution to Tennis West through the
year. A great deal has been achieved. We have sought to
continue to strengthen relations with our affiliated clubs and |
believe this has been achieved. We are privileged to have so
many wonderful volunteers in tennis in WA, and | am
delighted we were able to recognise a number of them at
such events as our Volunteers Cocktail Party and in Tennis
West’s Hopman Cup Box. We need to continue to work
together to reinvigorate tennis in WA and | will strive in my
presidency to ensure that this happens.

faw wtss T

Dean Williams
President — Tennis West
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Chief Executive Officer's Report

The 2010-11 financial year was an
exciting one for Tennis West and
tennisin Australia.

Tennis Australia continued to increase its investment in grassroots
tennis and the Member Associations. Tennis West benefited across a
number of areas, notably with increased funding into Community
Tennis and improved resourcing in Marketing and Player
Development.

Tennis West's strategy focus remained our core business — servicing
our clubs and the community, offering quality competition
opportunity for all, and managing the State Tennis Centre (STC)
bottom line to ensure it does not put a strain on Association
finances.

The State Tennis Centre proved to be a major talking point
throughout the year, as speculation persisted as to the likely
location of a major oval stadium in the Burswood precinct. This
speculation was confirmed with a government announcement late
in the year. As such, there is considerable uncertainty surrounding
the future of the State Tennis Centre. The Board has engaged with
the government and has investigated its options in the event that
the government requests that Tennis West vacate the site,
notwithstanding the fact that the STC lease has 37 years to run.

The year produced a net surplus of just over $133,915 in aggregate,
driven in the main by larger than budgeted grant income, from
Tennis Australia and the Department of Sport and Recreation (DSR)
in particular. Tennis Australia grant income was boosted by a full
year of the Community Tennis grant designed to invest in people on
the ground, as well as a new Local Area Marketing grant. DSR grants
exceeded last year's levels, largely due to funds received for a new
irrigation system, but assistance was also provided for court
resurfacing at the STC. It should be noted that effective expense
control was again a feature of the net result. Tennis West remains
grateful to its main funding partners — Tennis Australia, DSR and
Healthway — as well as all its commercial sponsors. The world
remained in the grip if uncertainty — with concerns over
government debt levels in particular affecting markets - but Tennis
West managed to get through unscathed, managing its
investments prudently and continuing to replenish its reserves.
After some difficult years

BGC through the Brikmakers brand completed their first year of
Tennis League sponsorship. We were delighted to have them as
naming rights sponsor, and the awareness and appreciation of
Brikmakers in the WA tennis community was very evident at the WA
Tennis Industry Awards Night in May. The latter event was
sponsored for the first time by Chambers Investment Planners and
we look forward to a rewarding association in coming years.

The D’Arcy Slater Foundation provided additional sponsor funds for
an inaugural Country Boys Camp, for which we were very grateful,
and we continue to appreciate the support of CBH, Linneys, and our
other sponsors.

Tennis League is a major focus of what we do. This year Brikmakers
Tennis League featured a number of format changes, the most
prominent of which was the trial of two shorter League seasons
through summer. Many of the changes implemented to League
were made in response to conclusions drawn from the GEMBA
survey into tennis participation in Australia — chief among them, the
desire in today’s market for more limited commitment. The results
were mixed, but we still enjoyed over 844 teams in the summer
leagues and an estimated 5,000 players, making our League the
largest single pennant competition, we believe, in the country.

Brikmakers’ State League was won by Hensman Park TC and
Cottesloe TC in the Men’s and Women’s divisions respectively.

The Brikmakers’ Junior State League titles were won by UWA TC in
the Boys event and by Reabold TC in the Girls event.

Of Western Australia’s top professional players, Matt Ebden was
the stand-out player across the year as a whole, being the first WA
male to reach the quarter final of an ATP Singles event for many
years. Casey Dellacqua had mixed results in a year, sadly, again
plagued by injury. However, she became the first West Australian
for many years to win a Grand Slam title, taking out the Mixed
Doubles, partnered by Scott Lipsky (USA) at the French Open.

The Pro Circuit again featured two combined Men’s and Women's
Pro Circuit events, in Kalgoorlie and Esperance. Thanks are again
extended to Goldfields TC and Esperance TC, in particular, for the
effort they putin to hosting these events. Esperance TC was
nominated at the inaugural Australian Tennis Awards as a finalist
in the ‘Best Event’ category, for which they should be
congratulated.

These events featured Community Action Programs, funded by
DSR, which sought to leverage the tournaments for the benefit of
tennis in the local community. Amongst other initiatives schools
were brought to the events for Hotshots and Hotshots Challenge
events.

Hotshots, Tennis Australia’s flagship program for kids (aged 7-12
years), was a major success in WA this year. Over 30,000 kids in
total experienced Hotshots sessions, the majority in schools now
that the program is targeted to them.

Tennis West also continued to develop the2020 Tennis Facilities
strategy in WA, working with eight Regional Tennis Centres
(clubs) — Alexander Park TC, Blue Gum Park TC, Midland TC,
Reabold TC, Sorrento TC, Goldfields TC (Kalgoorlie), Geraldton TC
and, the most recent recruit, Busselton TC. This is only the start of
along process designed to improve our tennis facilities and the
way they are managed. Those clubs selected in this process to
date are all proactive clubs and we thank them for their
commitment to working with us. The National Court Rebate
Scheme continued to assist WA club infrastructure projects,
demonstrating Tennis Australia’s commitment to improving
facilities nationally.

Other highlights included the appearance of both Liz Smillie and
Alicia Molik as our ‘legends’ at the January Legends Breakfast
during the Hopman Cup. They were great value bringing life on
the women’s tour, over two generations, into sharp contrast.

Tennis West's Academy program, now ostensibly run by Tennis
Australia under Michael Robertson and Callum Beale again
produced excellent results.

Finally I would like to extend my thanks to the staff for their
commitment and hard work, and to all the volunteers at our
affiliates, who are the life blood of their clubs and the sport in WA.
My thanks also go to President Dean Williams and the Board for
their continued support of me and, more importantly, tennis in
WA.

Andrew Stanbury
Chief Executive Officer, Tennis West
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Tennis Australia Report

In my sixth year as chief executive
officer of Tennis Australia, | am proud
to report strong performance and
healthy success in all aspects of our
business this year.

We continue to grow as a vibrant and dynamic organisation, striving
towards our shared goal to showcase the sport at the highest level.

A focus of the past twelve months has been to ensure a cohesive
approach among each and every member of the Tennis family, and |
am happy to say that Tennis West has been and will continue to be a
major part of our efforts.

Tennis West was once again well represented in March at the second
Australian Tennis Conference in Melbourne. Revolving around the
theme of “courting the path to success”, the conference gave us the
opportunity to share and workshop ideas with other members of the
wider Tennis community, and fine tune some of the existing good
work done at all levels to create consistent growth in the sport.

The conference was also a timely occasion to present the key findings
from our market research project conducted with sports marketing
group Gemba in regards to Tennis participation in Australia.

The study importantly found that only 22% of Australians from five to
75 years old had picked up a racquet in the last 12 months and 80% of
Australians who can play tennis, started before the age of 16. Based on
these findings a major participation drive was launched at the
conference to underline two key programs: the starter program for
beginners — MLC Tennis Hot Shots — and a new fun fitness tennis
program, Cardio Tennis.

The impact of our renewed focus is already evident. In the past twelve
months, the number of Hot Shots participants has risen from around
170,000 to almost 250,000 and there are now nearly 950 local venues
nationwide hosting the program.

Western Australia is especially fortunate to have a leading deliverer of
the program in Matthew Bull, who was recognised for Coaching
Excellence in MLC Tennis Hot Shots at the inaugural Newcombe
Medal, Australian Tennis Awards.

Our goal now is to introduce a Hot Shots program lasting five weeks
into almost a quarter of all primary schools by next year — which will
be asignificant step towards building stronger grassroots interest in
the sport.

In addition, a pilot program for Cardio Tennis is already underway and
the response from prospective deliverers has been overwhelmingly
positive.

Under the banner of Places to Play, the National Court Rebate Scheme
has now generated more than 1,000 courts and a total investment of
approximately $156.4 million in tennis facilities. The scheme has been
welcomed in every region and is having a profound economic and
social impact in the community.

In nurturing talent among our athletes, across the nation we now have
more than 3,000 registered Tennis Australia coach members with
access to the best practice education and expertise at all levels of the
game. We have a consolidated development pathway in place and a
passionate group of former players working with our future stars
within a responsive athlete management system.

Most importantly, the success of this framework has certainly been
reflected on court in the past twelve months.

Jarmila Gajdosova broke into the world top 30 for the first time after
claiming her second career WTA title, while Jelena Dokic returned to
the top 100 after winning her first WTA title in nine years. Local hero
Casey Dellacqua returned to Grand Slam® action to win the mixed
doubles at the French Open, and Samantha Stosur reached the
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quarterfinals of the US Open before achieving her career high ranking
of No.4 in February.

Bernard Tomic became the only teenager ranked in the top 100 (and
the highest ranked Australian) after a thrilling yet mature performance
at Wimbledon, and marked his place on the world stage by becoming
the youngest male to reach the quarterfinals since Boris Becker in
1985.

History was also created when Australia claimed the boys’ and girls’
singles titles at Junior Wimbledon, the first time both titles have been
won by Australians in the same year. Luke Saville was crowned as the
boys’ champion while 15 year-old Ashleigh Barty became the first
indigenous Australian to win at Wimbledon since her hero Evonne
Goolagong Cawley.

Former world No.1 Pat Rafter became Davis Cup captain in October
and was joined by Tony Roche as coach. Already, the duo has led
Australia to the World Group Play-off which will be played in
September. The Fed Cup team were unluckily defeated in their play-
off in April, and will be keen to return to the World Group under the
guidance of captain David Taylor.

Both the Junior Davis Cup and Fed Cup teams finished top spot in
their qualifying events and will now progress to the world final later
this year.

The Commonwealth Games tennis team covered themselves in glory
with an outstanding performance in Delhi, collectively winning several
medals including three of the five gold medals up for grabs.

Daniela Di Toro ended 2010 ranked No. 2 in the world and was a
finalist in wheelchair singles at the US Open in 2010 and Australian
Open 2011.

Today, Tennis Australia has a total of 205 staff, an estimated annual
turnover in excess of $150 million and financial reserves of
approximately $28 million, while the Australian Open prize money
pool was $25 million in 2011 — the largest in the event's history.

As the Grand Slam of Asia Pacific, creating a stronger presence in Asia
is also one of our strategic priorities and is a vital element in the
success of our tournament. All you need to do is consider the millions
of Chinese viewers who tuned in to watch Li Na in this year's
Australian Open final to realise the importance of the region’s support
in years to come.

A notable addition to Tennis Australia this year was our new president,
Steve Healy. The former Tennis NSW president has been a
longstanding supporter of boosting participation and increasing the
number of Australians competing among the world’s elite, and this is
certainly mirrored in the new and exciting direction of our
organisation.

| have been really pleased with the progress toward many of our
organisation’s priorities, and much of our effort will continue to be
working hand-in-hand with Tennis West to sharpen those goals and
accelerate that progress.

A united approach at all levels of governance can only strengthen the
well-being of our sport, and we are most fortunate that our financial
position has allowed us to continue delivering programs at the
highest level.

To the West Australian tennis family, thank you the part you have
played in growing the sport. | am very proud to work alongside such a
committed and focused group of people, and | look forward with
great confidence to embarking upon the next chapter of our country’s
tennis story.

Steve Wood
Chief Executive Officer, Tennis Australia
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2010/11 2009/10 2008/09
Metro Clubs 67 70 66
Country Clubs 121 128 124

Metro Members

12,737

12,835

12,875

Country Members

7,288

7,315

7,461

Tennis Coaches Australia — WA 0 0 0

Tennis Officials Australia— WA 47 0 33

Tennis Seniors Australia— WA 546 606 681
Associate Members* 95 - 95

*Affiliated Body does not have specific Tennis membership; therefore membership is based on the number of courts at

the facility.

2010/11 METROPOLITAIN A FFILIATED CLUB NETWORK

Alexander Park
Allen Park
Applecross
Armadale
Bassendean
Bayswater
Belmont Park
Blue Gum Park
Brixton Street
Bull Creek
Canning

City Beach
Claremont
Corinthian Park
Cottesloe
Daglish
Dalkeith

East Fremantle
Floreat Park
Forrestfield
Fremantle
Glen Forrest
Gosnells Memaorial Park
Greenwood
Hensman Park
Higgins Park
Kalamunda
Kardinya
Kelmscott
Kingsley
Kwinana
Leederville
Lesmurdie
Loton Park

Maida Vale
Manning
Maylands
Melville-Palmyra
Midland Lawn
Mosman Park
Mt Lawley

Next Generation Perth South

Nedlands
Nollamara

North Beach
North Perth

North Shore
Ocean Ridge

Old Collegians
Onslow Park
Parkwood
Peppermint Grove
Reabold
Robertson Park
Rockingham
Roleystone

Royal Kings Park
Safety Bay
Scarborough
Sorrento

South Perth
Tennis Seniors WA
Tennis at Spearwood
Thornlie

UWA

Wanneroo
Wembley Downs
Willetton
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2009/10 REGIONAL AFFILIATED CLUBS & ZONES

Central Districts
Beverley

Cadoux
Cunderdin
Dowerin
Kellerberrin
Koorda
Meckering
Merredin Districts
Merredin Railways
Northam
Nungarin
Quairading

South Caroling
Wamenusking
Wyalkatchem
York

Eastern Districts
Ardath

Bruce Rock
Corrigin

Hyden
Kondinin

Kulin

Moorine Rock
Mt Arrowsmith
Mt Walker
Narambeen
Southern Cross

Gascoyne
Carnarvon

Goldfields
Goldfields

Great Southern
Gnowangerup
Katanning
Kojonup
Kukerin

Lake Grace
Newdegate
Pingaring
Tambellup

Tarin Rock

Kimberley
Broome
Kununurra

Lower Great Southern
Denmark

Emu Point

Kendenup

Lawley Park

Merrifield Park

Mt Barker

Tenterden

Midwest
Ajana

Binnu
Chapman Valley
Dongara
Geraldton
Kalbarri
Mullewa
Northampton
Spalding Park
Tarcoola Park
Walkaway
Yuna

Moore Districts
Badgingarra
Ballidu

Bolgart
Calingiri
Dandaragan
Gingin
Goomalling
Jurien Bay
Kalannie
Konnongorring
Milling

Moora
Toodyay
Wongan Hills
Wannamal
Wubin
Yerecoin

North Midlands
Carnamah
Coorow

Latham
Mingenew
Morawa
Perenjori

Three Springs

Peel

Mandurah
Singleton-Golden Bay
South Mandurah
Yunderup

Pilbara
Karratha
Newman

Port Headland
Tom Price

South Coast
Esperance
Ravensthorpe
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South West
Australind
Boyup Brook
Bridgetown
Bunbury
Busselton
Collie
Cowaramup
Donnybrook
Dunsborough
Harvey
Margaret River
Ringbark

Upper Great Southern
Boddington
Brookton
Cuballing

Darkan

Dudinin
Dumbleyung
Highbury
Moodiarrup
Narrogin

Narrogin Railways
Pingelly
Pumphreys Bridge
Toolibin

Wagin

Wickepin
Yealering




Community Tennis

CLuB CONFERENCE

The Tennis West Club Conference continues to be a valuable
opportunity for tennis club representatives to network and
discuss developments, opportunities and challenges with
Tennis West staff and Directors. There were 97 attendees at this
year's forum; “Develop, Survive and Thrive” and the main focus
was in the form of a presentation by Tennis West on the
findings of the GEMBA report on tennis in Australia.

Tennis Australia contracted GEMBA, a sports marketing
company to undertake what was to be the largest survey in
sport in Australia. The GEMBA Report provides very clear
evidence that as a sport and as clubs we need to develop to
ensure survival and, more importantly, to thrive and grow. It
offers insight as to the kinds of directions we need to head in to
develop and thrive.

Clubs were invited to bring ideas and experiences for discussion
around what their club is currently doing to attract new people
to the club, do they offer different membership options, what
are their club coach arrangements and are their options for
social and competition opportunities. There were a number of
presentations and discussion held over the conference, with
clubs and Tennis West to work collaboratively to ensure Tennis
survives in the future.

SUNSMART CLUB CONNECT PROGRAM

Healthway once again provided support for the 2010/11
SunSmart Club Connect Program. Affiliated clubs were given
the opportunity to apply for a $200 grant ($250 as of
01/01/2011) to support a club-based event aimed at increasing
club membership and promoting the SunSmart message.

Thirteen metropolitan clubs were awarded the SunSmart Club
Connect grant throughout 2010/11. Club activities conducted
with the funding included a Family Fun Day, a Corporate Day,
an Open Day, a Memorial Tournament, a Smash Cancer Day and
a Sponsors Evening. These activities in aggregate exposed over
850 people to the sport of tennis.

The following metropolitan clubs successfully applied for a
2010/11 SunSmart Club Connect Grant: Madia Vale, Lesmurdie,
Kardinya, Maylands, Melville-Palmyra, Wanneroo, Scarborough
& Floreat (Joint event/funding), Brixton Street, Bayswater, East
Fremantle, Bull Creek, North Beach and Next Generation Perth
South, Bibra Lake.

All successful clubs were provided with a SunSmart pack
consisting of a SunSmart sign and Sunsmart collateral to use as
prizes and giveaways at the event.

SunSmart Junior Tournament at Next Generation Perth South
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TENNIS FOR PEOPLE WITH INTELLECTUAL DISABILITIES (1D,

The State Tennis Centre and Brixton Tennis Centre played host
to four group coaching programs per term during 2010/11. On
average, a total of 25 participants, ranging in age from 6-50
years old took part in the programs each term.

The weekday program at the State Tennis Centre has proven to
be one of the most popular programs on offer. This program is
specifically targeted at adults with an intellectual disability, and
has doubled in participant numbers since its inception twelve
months ago. Owing to this rise in demand, a second timeslot
has been introduced.

WHEELCHAIR TENNIS

Wheelchair Tennis commenced in Term 1, 2011 with a
Wheelchair Tennis Coach Development Clinic attended by six
club coaches. This clinic was aimed at educating coaches on the
techniques and skills involved in coaching wheelchair tennis.

Subsequent to the Coach Development Clinic, the Term 1
coaching program was launched at the State Tennis Centre with
a Come and Try Evening attended by eight wheelchair athletes
and four able-bodied players. These players ranged in age from
9yo - 40yo. The evening not only introduced the sport to new
wheelchair tennis players, it also helped the able-bodied players
develop a new appreciation for the sport after a one hour
session in the chairs.

The free 6-week group coaching program was promoted and
delivered in collaboration with Wheelchair Sports WA, who
marketed the program to their extensive database of
participants. At the conclusion of the program a mini-
tournament was held for all players.

Wheelchair Tennis Come and Try Evening at the State Tennis Centre

SPECIALIST TENNIS HIGH SCHOOL PROGRAMS

Tennis West have continued to be involved with the schools
that have a Specialist Sports Program Status. The specialist
tennis schools include: Kent St Senior High School, Applecross
Senior High School and John Forrest Senior High School.

Tennis West is involved in the endorsement process with exists
every 3 years and work with these schools on program content,
recruitment and other initiatives.




INDIGENOUS TENNIS PROGRAM

The Indigenous Tennis Program continued to be one of Tennis
West most successful participation programs. The 2010/11
program, supported by Tennis Australia, the Australian Sports
Commission and the Department of Sport & Recreation,
ensured Indigenous children across the State had the
opportunity to participate in tennis. The program comprised of
tennis in schools sessions, club scholarships and the annual
Harmony Day tournament.

Throughout 2010/11, seventeen schools took part in the
Indigenous Tennis-in Schools program — eight regional and nine
metropolitan. This program exposed a total of 1,851
participants to the sport of tennis, an increase of 611
participants from 2009/10. The schools involved were: Queens
Park, Bentley, St Josephs, Middle Swan, East Maddington,
Clayton View, Gosnells, Moorditj Noongar, Beachlands,
Rangeway, Spencer Park, Mt Lockyer, St Cecilia’s, South
Hedland, Waddington, Balga and Koondoola.

In line with the Department of Sport and Recreation’s direction
of linking more Indigenous children into the club system,
individual coaching scholarships were awarded to successful
applicants. Scholarships included club membership, pennant
subsidies and a choice of private or group coaching lessons. In
total, thirteen scholarships were awarded to individuals at
Gosnells Memorial Park, Mosman Park, Goldfields and Maida
Vale Tennis Club.

HARMONY DAY TOURNAMENT

The State Tennis Centre played host to the annual Harmony Day
Tournament (Indigenous Interschool Tennis Tournament) on
March 23 with three schools - Bentley Primary School, Carlisle
Primary School and Clayton View Primary School all competing
for the 2011 title.

The event is designed to give the children who had been
participating in the 2010/2011 Indigenous Tennis in Schools
program an opportunity to put their coaching lessons to the
test in a competitive, yet fun environment. Participants thrived
on the opportunity to represent their schools, with Carlisle
Primary School ultimately claiming the coveted title.

All participants received a prize for their participation and were
invited to a BBQ and presentation at the conclusion of the
tournament. Overall, the event was a huge success and an
enjoyable experience for all those involved. All schools received
funding to cover bus travel and teacher relief.

Community Tennis
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MLC TENNIS HOT SHOTS

Tennis Hot Shots is a fun way for kids to learn how to play
tennis, using smaller courts, nets, racquets and low compression
balls making learning easy. The 2010/2011 program consisted
of club programs, challenge events (see below), schools
sessions and the Active After Schools Program. Tennis West
have had a great year with MLC Tennis Hot Shots with a massive
tennis in schools program including

School Program - 213 schools, 25454 participants

Club Program — 104 clubs, 2968 participants
Active After Schools Program — 1967

The feedback from schools has been positive, with many
schools continuing to deliver the MLC Tennis Hot Shots
Program in school. Schools were offered a discount on
equipment and were provided a DVD resource with lessons
plans to assist with the continued delivery of the program. The
conversion from tennis in schools participants to children
joining a club program at their local Tennis West affiliated club
is 11%, which is positive.

MLC TENNIS HOT SHOTS CHALLENGES

MLC Tennis Hot Shots Challenge Events evolved from First
Game Tournaments and are designed to complement the MLC
Tennis Hot Shots weekly coaching program. Challenge Events
provide young players with a first tournament experience in a
positive, friendly club environment.

In 2010/11 the number of Challenge Events held throughout
the State increased by 61% from 2009/10. In total, 31 Hot Shot
Challenge events were conducted throughout the year at the
following clubs and centres: Next Generation Perth South,
Sorrento, State Tennis Centre, Goldfields, John Forrest Senior
High School, Tennis at Spearwood, Margaret River, Mingenew,
Onslow Park, Mosman Park, Kojonup, Merrifield Park,
Greenwood, Esperance, Busselton, Dalkeith and Blue Gum Park.

The country challenge events at Mingenew and Kojonup were
particularly well received with 80 participants enrolled at each
venue. Both clubs used the challenge event to conclude the
coaching term and provide the participants with a first
tournament experience.
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VOLUNTEER INVOLVEMENT PROGRAM

Tennis West recognises the hard work that volunteers
contribute to our game. The Volunteer Involvement Program
gives each affiliated tennis club the opportunity to nominate
their club or someone within their club to receive awards at the
Annual Tennis Industry Awards Night.

This year saw a very high standard of nominees from all over
Western Australia. The ‘Sports Trophy Club of the Year’
recognizes the exceptional commitment and achievements of a
Tennis West affiliated club. The 2010/11 recipient of this award
was Reabold Tennis Club, who have embraced their Regional
Tennis Centre status and have actively participated in many
Tennis West initiatives.

The 2010/11 ‘Houghtons Classic White Volunteer of the Year’
was awarded to John Pritchard from Wembley Downs Tennis
Club. John’s contribution to the club in the last year has been
immense. He worked tirelessly and showed great leadership at
an important time in the Wembley Downs club’s history.

The ‘Dunlop-Slazenger Service to Tennis Award’ was presented
to Diane Warburton from the Upper Great Southern Zone and
Ken Brown from the Alexander Park Tennis Club. Both Diane
and Ken have each devoted over 10 years of voluntary service to
their clubs and to tennis in WA.

AUSTRALIAN OPEN TROPHY TOUR

For the first time in the Australian Open history Tennis the
winner of the 2011 Men’s and Women'’s singles titles will take
home an exact full-size replica trophy instead of a miniature
replica that past champions have received. To celebrate, the
trophies hit the road on the first nationwide Australian Open
Trophy Tour. The trophies debuted at the Australian Open
Launch, then headed to South Australia, stopping off at the Port
Pirie Tennis International for the tournament's 20th anniversary,
and then visiting destinations including Adelaide, Hobart,
Darwin, Perth, Esperance, Sydney, Canberra, Rockhampton,
Brisbane and Bendigo before finishing their journey at
Melbourne Park on 17 January, day one of Australian Open
2011.

Western Australian Tennis fans were lucky enough to have their
very own photo opportunity with the Norman Brookes
Challenge Cup (men’s trophy) and Akhurst Memorial Cup
(women'’s trophy).

Whilst in WA, the trophies first stop was Esperance. The trophies
were featured at Twilight Beach, the Sailing Club for the Cliffs
Esperance Tennis International Official Draw and the Esperance
Tennis Club for the Official Opening.

Alicia Molik was in Esperance and had this to say about the
trophy tour. “You really can’t get any closer to the trophies than
the Australian Open Winners themselves. It's such a great
opportunity for kids and tennis enthusiasts to have a photo with
the prized possession. Twilight Beach in Esperance, this really
has to be one of the most iconic and beautiful places in
Australia, so feel very lucky to be involved at ground level.”

The Trophies then travelled back to Perth, where they were
featured at Kings Park with local Reabold Tennis club members
and representatives including Andrew Embley, Josh Kennedy,
Ashley Hanson and Beau Waters from the West Coast Eagles.
The WA leg of the tour than wrapped up at Reabold Tennis
Centre, with a public viewing and function of the trophies.

-
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West Coast Eagles Players with the AO Trophies in Kings Park

COMMUNITY TENNIS DAYS

Tennis West actively participated in a number of Community
Tennis Days and events around the state to promote and
encourage people to play tennis. Tennis West provided a
Tennis information stand and “have a go” station to engage the
public in tennis. These community events capture a wide
audience, with people attending from all over WA. There were
over 2500 participants across a number of community days,
including large scale event such as: Seniors Recreation Day,
Christmas Pageant, Hopman Cup Family Day/Interactive Zone
and the World Sports Expo.

MLC Tennis Hot Shots Promo at the 2011 Hopman Cup

Page 11



NATIONAL ACADEMY

International Tours

The National Academy (NA) continues to service a group of
highly committed athletes in all areas of their tennis
development. Through the National Academy an overwhelming
majority of athletes have now gained international tennis
experience via various overseas tours. The NA will continue to
provide international opportunities wherever possible as these
experiences have proven to be very influential in an athlete’s
tennis development, both on and off the court. Two National
Academy athletes (Maddison Inglis and Scott Jones) had the
privilege of being the first two players to train on centre court at
Roland Garros for 2011. Roland Garros is typically closed to the
public around the French Open, however Maddison and Scott
were provided this rare opportunity when in Paris on a Tennis
Australia tour.

In September 2010, Storm Sanders departed Perth bound for
Mexico where she represented Australia in the World Finals of
the Junior Federation Cup. Prior to the event she had training in
California with the team under the guidance of Mark
Woodforde and Nicole Bradtke. Likewise, Scott Jones also had
the privilege of being a part of the Davis Cup preparation in
Cairns. Scott, along with several of the other leading juniors,
were flown to Cairns to integrate with Australia’s Davis Cup
team in their lead-up to their tie against Belgium. The juniors
trained on court for several days with John Fitzgerald before
watching the tie courtside.

Ben Dallinger has also spent time in Europe, Anja Dokic
competed for Australia in the World Junior Teams Event in
Malaysia, and Storm Sanders spent 6 weeks in the USA playing
Pro-Tour events. Maddison Inglis and Scott Jones were also
lucky enough to represent Australia at the “1998 European Tour,
consisting of one week of clay-court training followed by three
weeks of Clay Court tournaments in Italy.

At present 75% of the National Academy athletes have been
involved with international Tennis Australia tours.

R —

o
Scott Jones (centre) with Maddison Inglis (right) & National Academy
Manager Michael Robertson (far left) on the ‘1998 European Tour’ of Italy.

Parent Information Seminars

Each term the parents of NA athletes are provided with the
opportunity to interact with the Academy’s Sports Psychologist
through a Parent Information Seminar. Each seminar focuses on
arelevant topic and allows parents to discuss their role in
assisting the tennis development of the child/children. The
sharing of information between all stakeholders has been
pivotal for the academy in establishing relationships and
ensuring everyone is moving in the same direction. This will
remain a priority in the future.
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Off-Court Camp

In June 2011, National Academy athletes completed a
comprehensive ‘off-court camp’ where they underwent an array
of tests. The camp involved fitness testing, nutrition screenings,
psychological profiling and injury prevention. These tests were
administered by staff specialising in these areas, with the results
to be used in shaping players training programs for the coming
months. The camp culminated in a seminar for players and
parents which focused on pre and post match routines that are
consistent with elite professional athletes. Education of players,
parents and all surrounding stakeholders is an integral part of
junior tennis and the NA remains committed to this process.

High Performance Coaching Qualification

To ensure coaching staff in WA are leading the way in terms of
coaching qualifications and current knowledge, a high internal
priority is placed on all staff completing Tennis Australia’s High
Performance Coaching Qualification. This qualification is the
highest offered through Tennis Australia as part of its
educational courses and is recognized by the International
Tennis Federation. The course is an 18 month minimum
investment which covers all aspects of high-performance
coaching (biomechanics, strength and conditioning, nutrition,
psychology and coaching philosophies). Tennis West Talent
Development Coach, Andrew Roberts and Athlete
Development Manager, Callum Beale both completed the
course, whilst Len Cannel is enrolled in the August intake. At
present there are only 3 coaches in WA who have completed
this course since the year 2000 (National Academy Head Coach,
Michael Robertson, Andrew Roberts and Callum Beale)

TENNIS WEST STATE ACADEMY

The Tennis West Academy (TWA) is a program that assists in the
development of elite juniors, aligned closely with the National
Academy (NA). This program plays several important roles with
respect to the athlete development pathway. The primary goal
of the TWA is to transition players into the NA by fulfilling the
necessary criteria. It also acts as the next progression for
athletes graduating from the Talent Development Squad (TDS).
Athletes up to the age of 16 can transition into the NA; however
the TWA still provides a training environment for those athletes
beyond this age who may continue to pursue a professional
tennis career or endeavour to play college tennis in the US.

The TWA is headed by Len Cannell, who is also the strength and
conditioning coach for all three academies. This ensures a
seamless transition from one academy to the next with respect
to the athlete’s physical development. This year the State
Academy has directly benefited from the establishment of the
Talent Development program. Having an underpinning junior
program has ensured a constant flow of juniors moving through
the pathway and into the State Squad, which in turn increases
the chances of players moving even further through into the
National Academy.

Term 1 of 2011 saw the resurrection of ‘Camp Courage’ (CC).
Milo Bradley originally introduced CC as a selection camp back
in 2003 and it continued for the next 4 years. CC has now
evolved into ‘cult status’ with stories of previous years filtering
through the academies. The main obhective of CC is to expose
athletes to what life can be like as a travelling tennis player and
to equip them with skills that allow them to better handle
adversity. There are many messages delivered through CC — not
all are expected to be absorbed immediately, however over
time we hope to create independent, responsible athletes that
become ‘master and commander’.




Term 2 of 2011 saw the introduction of regular weekend
training sessions for both State and National Academy athletes.
Two of the biggest constraints preventing players from
reaching adequate training volume are school commitments
and travel time. Through offering weekend sessions the
academy hopes to navigate around these two influences and
ensure each player’s training needs are satisfied.

The State Academy continues to be an important link in the
player development pathway and is already producing
promising results at local events. A number of academy players
claimed titles at the Nedlands Open, Brixton Street tournament
and the North and South of the River events, which is a great
reward for their recent training efforts.

TALENT DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM

The Talent Development Program is a joint program between
Tennis Australia and Tennis West. It has been established to
identify and develop athletes between the ages of 7 and 12
years old. The program consists of a Talent Development
Squad, Match Play days and Talent Development Camps. The
day to day operations of the program are run by Tennis West
employee Andrew Roberts.

By design the Talent Development Squad brings together 8
to12 of the most talented u/12 year olds in a centralised
environment with the aim to produce NA or TWA scholarship
holders. The squad trains at the State Tennis Centre three times
per week and offers holistic development through the use of
Tennis Australia’s core skills and drills, along with strength and
conditioning. Athletes are selected through their Australian
Ranking, results at State and National events and can be
recommended by their private coach. Tennis West offers a
match play session each week where talented athletes are
invited to participate in competitive matches within the Talent
Development Squad. Private Coaches are invited to attend
these sessions where they can provide feedback to their players.

A critical component in the area of Talent Search and
Development is the involvement of the private coach. The
training program offered at the State Tennis Centre is designed
to work in conjunction with the individual coach of each player
to ensure the developmental needs are been met. Each private
coach is invited to play an active role in the training session. In
late 2010 an extra match play session was made available for all
athletes in the program to support the needs of an aspiring
player. The weekly match-play session integrates all levels of the
Tennis West pathway — National Academy, State Squad and
Talent Development program.

Individual player/parent meetings were a new initiative added
to the Talent Development Squad in Term 3, 2011. Similar to the
National Academy and State Squad, the purpose of these
meetings are to inform key stakeholders of the athlete’s
development, training and tournament schedules and
discussion on areas for improvement.

Also during Term 3, Joe McCarthy was appointed assistant
coach for the Talent Development Squad. This position works in
conjunction with his current role in Tournaments at Tennis West
and bridges and gap that previously existed between Player
Development and Tournaments.

In 2010 Tennis Australia assisted six Talent Development
Coaches to travel to national events to watch their athletes
compete through a travel grant initiative. This is an enormous
benefit to both coach and player as it allows the coach to
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further recognize areas for improvement in the player and to
observe the national benchmark in performance. Further to this,
national events offer professional development opportunities
for coaches through various seminars such as strength and
conditioning and sports psychology.

The Talent Development program continued to evolve through
the initial months of 2011. A major change related to the
inclusion of a Wednesday morning training session at the State
Tennis Centre directed and delivered by each player’s private
coach. This initiative is designed to further engage private
coaches in the Talent Development area and strengthen their
relationship with Tennis West. Importantly these sessions
provide a focused and intense training environment for players
and an opportunity to train amongst their peers.

Four Talent Development Camps are conducted each year as
part of the Talent Development Program. In April 2011 the
leaders of the leaders of Talent Development for Tennis
Australia, Kim Kachel and Rob Leeds were in attendance for a
camp at the State Tennis Centre, as were 42 athletes, 9 private
coaches and 4 player development staff. The camp focused on
‘Coaching Male vs Female Players’ where coaches were all
involved in discussions that centred around the many variables
that need to be considered when coaching a male player in
comparison to a female player. Parents of the players in
attendance were involed in two information sessions, one
relating to the development of ‘independent’ athletes, and
another discussing training methods and tournament
pathways. The goal of local camps remain on impacting all key
stakeholders surrounding a players development (athlete,
coach, parent/s).

Collectively we thank you for your support throughout 2010-11
and look forward to more success in 2011-12.




COACH DEVELOPMENT

Coach Development remained under the wing of Tennis
Australia in 2010/11, directed by Coach Development
Coordinator Ryan Popovsky. Ryan is responsible for
coordinating Tennis Australia coach education courses and
professional development opportunities. Ryan also assists
with club coaching contracts and supervises the Tennis
Australia Coach Membership program. A summary of the
events, results and outcomes from the above mentioned
areas are outlined below:

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Cardio Tennis Workshop

A Cardio Tennis Workshop was held on 25 May at the State
Tennis Centre. Fifty coach members attended this workshop
presented by Belinda Colaneri, Coach Education &
Professional Development Coordinator at Tennis Australia.
Assisting Belinda was Christina Ladyman, who was one of
two WA coaches chosen to pilot the Cardio Tennis program
in WA throughout Term 1, 2012. Both Christina and
Greenwood Tennis Coach, Glen Popovsky will be using the
pilot to identify issues that the US Cardio program may have
with Australian consumers and coaches.

The Cardio Tennis Workshop highlighted the key
components of the program and provided an opportunity
for coaches to view the program on-court and provide
feedback that will help with the launch of the Australian
Cardio program in Term 1, 2012.

Fundamental Perceptual Motor Skills Workshop

A Fundamental Perceptual Motor Skills (FPMS) workshop
was held on 8 April at the State Tennis Centre. Thirty five
coaches attended this session presented by Gail Aitken who
provided an on-court showing of FPMS activities with a
group of six four year olds. Off court, she highlighted the
key milestones of her program (mpower minis) and
suggested program considerations for coaches.

Tennis Australia Grand Slam Coaches Conference
Twenty one WA coaches attended the Annual Tennis
Australia Grand Slam Coaches Conference (AGSCC) held in
Melbourne prior to the Australian Open. This was the largest
WA contingent who have attended the AGSCC, up from 16
in 2010.

Mike Barrell Workshop: Demands of Red, Orange &
Green Court Tennis

Mike Barrell, director of evolve9 in the UK and a world
renowned expert in the area of children’s tennis delivered
the 'demands of red, orange and green, it's not just about
smaller courts and slower balls' Workshop at the State
Tennis Centre on 12 August. Fifty two coaches, including
nine regional coaches attended this on-court workshop,
which showcased examples of activities for children in these
Learning-to-Play stages which is closely linked to the MLC
Tennis Hot Shots program.
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Club Professional Coaching Course at the STC

MEMBERSHIP

The number of Tennis Australia (TA) Coach Members in
Western Australia has grown significantly in the last three
financial years. After a 10% growth in 2009/10, there has
been a further 24% increase in membership numbers,
resulting in a total of 245 TA Coach Members for 2010/1




COURSES

Tennis Australia High Performance Qualification

The Tennis Australia High Performance (TAHP) coaching
qualification aims to prepare coaches to work at the high
performance level. Potential high performance coaches will
be provided with a structured intensive learning program
over two years to further develop their knowledge and skills.

Two West Australian coaches completed the Tennis
Australia High Performance Qualification in 2010/11 —
Tennis West Academy Coach Andrew Roberts and Tennis
Australia National Development Manager, Callum Beale.

Tennis Australia Club Professional Course

The Tennis Australia Club Professional Coaching
Qualification is designed to train coaches to become head
coaching professionals at tennis clubs/centres.

A Club Professional Course commenced in March 2011, with
6 participants due to complete the course in late July 2011.

Tennis Australia Junior Development Course

The Tennis Australia Junior Development Coaching
Qualification is designed to train coaches to develop the
skills of junior tennis players aged 4-12 years

AJunior Development qualification course was conducted
from March 2011 to July 2011. Ten participants, including
regional coaches from Broome, Esperance and Bunbury
enrolled in, and completed this qualification.

Tennis Australia Trainee Course

The Tennis Australia Trainee Coaching Course (TCC) was
designed by the Tennis Australia Coach Development
Department and selected educational providers to train
coaches to develop the skills of junior tennis players.

Two Trainee short courses were run at the State Tennis
Centre during September 2010 and March 2011, with 9 and
5 participants enrolled in each course respectively.

Introduction to MLC Tennis Hot Shots Course

Intro to MLC Tennis Hot Shots coaching courses are
introductory coaching courses produced by Tennis Australia
and supported by the Australian Sports Commission (ASC).

An Intro to MLC Tennis Hot Shots coaching course is
particularly relevant for people working with children;
however, it is also relevant to beginner coaches of any age
group. Course content is directed at children’s sport and
covers basic sport skills, group organisation, planning, child
development, safety aspects, modified games and activities
as well as administration of junior programs.

A combined total of 56 participants took part in Introduction
to MLC Tennis Hotshots course across the following venues:
Central TAFE, St Stephens Carramar, Perth, Albany,
Kalgoorlie, Cowaramup, Esperance, Geraldton and
Busselton.
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Club Professional Coaching Course at the STC

Trainee Coaching Course at the STC

Introduction to MLC Tennis Hot Shots Course




TENNIS WEST 100 CLUB

The 100 Club is a Tennis West initiative to raise funds for WA's
talented and promising junior tennis players, to help meet costs
and assist their development in the game. The 100 Club seeks
donations of $100 (or more) from individuals or groups,
including WA's tennis clubs. In 2010/11 there were a total of
eighty one 100 Club Members.

In 20010/11 100 Club scholarships were awarded to the
following athletes:

Storm Sanders Sasha Bollweg

Scott Jones Rhys Johnson
Maddison Inglis Anja Dokic

Ben Dallinger Ben Webster
Robert Allen Daniel Alameh
Aswin Sharma Jack Lyttle

Astra Sharma Dominic Bechard
Erika Bollweg Vuk Velickovic
Tsige Lacey

We have seen some exciting results from our scholarship
holders over the past twelve months, including:

Jack Lyttle
- Represented Australia at the “1997 European Tour”

(Paris, Slovenia, Italy)
Winner: 14/U WA State Closed Hardcourts, October
2010
Winner: 14/U Sungold Junior Grasscourt Open, Victoria,
December 2010 (Doubles)
Finalist: Optus 12’s National Claycourt Championships,
Ipswich, April 2010 (Doubles)

Scott Jones
Part of the Davis Cup Preparations in Cairns — Trained
with Australia’s Davis Cup Team in the lead-up to their
tie against Belgium
Represented Australia at the “1998 European Tour”
(Italy)
Winner: 12/U WA Junior Open, October 2010
Winner: 12/U South Australia Junior Open, December
2010
Winner: Optus 12’s Australian Championships,
Melbourne Park, December 2010 (Doubles)

Anja Dokic

- Represented Australia at the “1997 European Tour”
(Paris, Slovenia, Italy)
Winner: 16/U WA State Open Age, July 2010
Winner: 14/U Sorrento Junior Hardcourts, September
2010

Storm Sanders

- Represented Australia in the World Finals of the Junior
Fed Cup in Mexico
Finalist: AMT Platinum #2, Melbourne Park, December
2010

Last year Tennis West held two functions for 100 Club members
- the Tennis West Academy Training & BBQ and the Legends
Breakfast, which were both very successful and helped to raise
additional funds for the 100 Club. The 100 Club raffle was also
another successful project which contributed an extra $3,300 of
financial support for WA juniors.

Page 16

The 100 Club -

RaTLE] A Y

Throughout 2010/11 we awarded over $11,950 in funding to
assist our WA athletes in travelling interstate and overseas for
competition. We are always looking to improve on this amount
and continue to grow and give our WA athletes the best
possible opportunity to reach their potential. Every dollar raised
through the 100 Club goes directly to player development in
WA.

20010/11 100 CLUB MEMBERS

Graeme Allan Bill Price

Loretta Baker Ted Reiss

John Bougher Peter Rigg

Milo Bradley Dene Rundle
Janet Brown June Rundle

Joan Carney Peter & Andrea Rundle
James Cameron Barry Sanders
Colin Clark Cathy Smith

Fiona Clark Andrew Stanbury
Margaret Court John Thorpe

Rick Cullen Allan Wall

Jim Davies Rob Webster
Graham & Treffina Dowland  Clive Wilderspin
Peter Eyres Michael Webware
Collins Family Dean Williams
Peter Field Women in Tennis
Wayne Firns Tennis Officials WA
B.S. Francis

John Genovese Tennis Clubs

Michael and Julie Green Alexander Park Tennis Club

Simon Hadfield Australind Tennis Club
Michael & Sally Hendricks Bayswater Tennis Club
Keith Hince Blue Gum Park Tennis Club
Peter Hollow Bull Creek Tennis Club
Loretta Hughes City Beach Tennis Club
Lesley Hunt Corinthian Park Tennis Club
lan Hutchison Dalkeith Tennis Club
Shaun Johnson East Fremantle Tennis Club
Jeff King Hensman Park Tennis Club
Judy Kozak Manning Tennis Club
Michael & Wendy Lee Midland Lawn Tennis Club
Scott Marshall Mount Lawley Tennis Club

Arthur Marshall OAM JP
Ken Mcintosh
A. Michael & Sue

Nedlands Tennis Club
Northam Lawn Tennis Club
North Beach Tennis Club

Jessica Moore Reabold Tennis Club

Bill Munday Safety Bay Tennis Club

Rob Ockerby Sorrento Tennis Club

Paul Olivier South Mandurah Tennis Club
Hedley O'Neil Wembley Downs Tennis Club
Noel Pearse

Gary Penberthy

Harry Phillips

- ) P Aaar
100 Club Academy Training and BBQ Night




REGIONAL TENNIS ZONES

The numbers of Regional Tennis West Affiliated clubs and their
members have continued to decline in 2010/2011 with 121
clubs, 7288 members from 128 clubs, and 7315 members in
2009/2010. Despite the decrease in Tennis West affiliated clubs
and declining membership numbers, there were some positives
to note in country tennis during the 2010/2011 year.

Tennis West continued to attend the Regional Tennis Zone
Annual General Meetings, which was a great opportunity to
discuss current club issues, successes, concerns and future
plans. The GEMBA research along with the supporting resource,
the Tennis Toolkit was presented at each zone AGM and was
well received by each zone and their respective clubs. By
attending these meetings, it also allowed Tennis West to assist
these zones through the process of becoming incorporated. All
zones that met the requirements have now been approved as
incorporated bodies, which is a great achievement by the
committee and volunteers.

Country zone committees remain strong, with a number of
dedicated volunteers at the zone and club level. The Regional
Development Administrators (RDA's) have remained in the
positions and remained enthusiastic, despite an increase in
workload.

yde)\\|S RDA
Central Districts Julie Mussared
Eastern Districts Wendy Hooper
Goldfields Erin Bond
Great Southern Kim Taylor
Lower Great Southern Eileen Bairstow
Midwest Janniel Harris
Moore Districts Julie Taylor
Upper Great Southern Dianne Warburton
South West Alison Kirk
South Coast Jo Scheer

SUNSMART COUNTRY CLINICS

In 2010/11 thirteen clubs successfully applied for the $200
Country SunSmart Grant ($250 as of 01/01/2011) to fund and
support events such as Mother-Daughter Competitions, Group
Coaching, Challenge Events and Junior Tournaments. In total, all
of these events exposed over 500 people to the sport of tennis
and the SunSmart message.

The following clubs were successful in their application for a
Country SunSmart Grant: Toodyay, Kindinin, Moorine Rock,
Kulin, Kalannie, Ardath, Tarcoola Park, Gnowangerup, Harvey,
Dudinin, Wagin, Ravensthorpe and the Upper Great Southern
Zone.

SunSmart Event at Harvey Tennis Club

Regional Tennis

WOMEN IN TENNIS ACTIVE GIRLS LIVE-IN CAMP

The annual Women in Tennis Active Girls Live-in Camp took
place on 9-11 July, 2010. The Camp is a three day live-in-camp
open to girls aged 9-16 from country WA. The focus of the camp
is to provide coaching and social opportunities for junior female
tennis players. This year, 37 girls attended the camp from all
over regional WA, with some travelling from as far as Esperance,
Albany, Kalgoorlie, Bunbury and Geraldton.

The camp featured a large range of social and physical activities,
including ten-pin bowling, indoor multi-sports, fitness tests and
movies, along with over 10 hours of on-court coaching sessions.

On the final day of the camp the girls participated in a mini-
tournament, allowing them to put their newly acquired skills to
the test. The camp concluded with a presentation and sausage
sizzle attended by all coaches, participants, family and friends.

2010 Women in Tennis Active Girls Live in Camp

SUNSMART TENNIS IN SCHOOLS PROGRAM

This year’s Country Tennis in Schools Program followed the
National tennis in schools program Tennis Hot Shots, which
ensured that the 2142 children that participated in this program
were part of a National initiative. The program received positive
feedback from coaches, teachers and students with several
evaluation forms stating “we want more tennis”. The majority
of schools have since purchased the Tennis Hot Shots
equipment and continued delivery the program, which will
continue to keep the children active through tennis.

There were 31 primary schools involved in the program, these
included: Kukerin, Wandering, Babakin, Bruce Rock, Corrigin,
Kondinin, Kulin, Hyden, Narembeen, Mount Manypeaks,
Kendenup, Borden, Parklands, Moora, Toodyay, Calingri, Bolgart,
Bindoon, Yealering, Wickepin, Frankland River, Mt Lockyer,
Rangeway, Beachlands, Mt Tarcoola, East Narrogin, Nyabing,
Binnu, Great Southern Grammar, Three Springs and Esperance.
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COUNTRY ROADSHOWS

Roadshows within regional Western Australia are a valuable way
to promote tennis participation, and are always very popular
with local clubs, schools and the wider community.

In 2010/11 the Tennis West Community Tennis Team, with the
financial support of the D'Arcy Slater Foundation, delivered
Roadshows to three regional zones across WA- the Pilbara,
Moore Districts and the South West.

MLC Tennis Hot Shots Clinics were delivered to a total of 17
schools, allowing over 1000 students to be exposed to the sport
of tennis.

Schools visited as part of the Roadshows were as follows:
Pilbara:

South Hedland Primary School

St Cecilias Primary School

Cassia Education Support Centre

Moore Districts:
Goomalling Primary School
Bolgart Primary School
Wongan Hills Primary School
Yerecoin Primary School
Miling Primary School
Dandaragan Primary School
Badgingara Primary School
Jurien Bay Primary School

South West:

Australind Primary School

Margaret River Primary School

Yallingup Steiner School

Karridale Primary School

Augusta Primary School

Bridgetown Primary School

St Mary’s Catholic Primary School, Boyup Brook

Hot Shots Clinic at St Mary's Catholic Primary School

Regional Tennis

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT PROGRAM

In 2010 the Department of Sport and Recreation, through the
Community Sport Enrichment Scheme, provided the Tennis
West Community Tennis Team with the opportunity to deliver
Roadshows as part of the Community Action Plan which ran
alongside Tennis Australia’s Pro Tour Events in Kalgoorlie and
Esperance.

The Roadshow, coordinated by Brooke Koenig and Paul
Oldfield, allowed over 1,500 school children to participate in
organised tennis clinics and activities. The school program was
a particular success, with 8 schools in Kalgoorlie, and 12 schools
in Esperance taking part in MLC Tennis Hot Shots Clinics and
other tennis related activities. The children also had the
opportunity to meet some tour players and watch matches
featuring local heroes Alicia Molik and Brydan Klein.

\

Hot Shots Clinics at Esperance Tennis Club

CBH COUNTRY ZONE CHALLENGE

This year’s event was contested by 8 Regions with a total of 32
Junior Teams and 7 Senior Teams with over150 players in all.
Apart from a set back of a few showers on the first day the
weather was glorious throughout the event. Robertson Park
Tennis Centre was made available for the Junior Teams.
“Southwest” were the champions this year taking first or second
place in all individual events.

Thanks you to The CBH Group for their continued support by
sponsoring this event for the 5 year running and during the
presentations Lee Oliver, Business Systems Manager for CBH,
confirmed their sponsorship will continue.
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SCHOOLS CLASSIC — REGIONAL

The 2011 Country Schools Classic saw 124 teams play off at the
following country clubs around the State: Merrifield Park,
Quairading, Cunderdin, Geraldton, Katanning, Narrogin,
Narembeen and Busselton. This was an increase of 14 teams
from 2010, which is an encouraging sign for tennis in country
WA.

Twenty of these teams qualified for the Finals Event held in
Perth on Sunday April 17. The Academy Plate (Primary) was
contested amongst 8 teams at the State Tennis Centre, whilst
the Boys and Girls Herbert Edwards Cup and Mursell Shield
Finals were held at the Nollamara Tennis Club. The number of
teams in attendance at this year's Final was particularly low,
predominantly due to clashes with other sporting events and
school holidays in the Midwest Zone.

The results of the 2011 Country School Classic Final are as
follows:

Academy Plate: St Josephs Primary School
Herbert Edwards Cup (Boys): Great Southern Grammar
Herbert Edwards Cup (Girls): Great Southern Grammar
Mursell Shield (Boys): Bunbury Catholic College
Mursell Shield (Girls): Mackillop Catholic College

The tennis throughout the play-offs and the Finals was of an
exceptional standard, and all participants, teachers and parents
were organized, enthusiastic and above all, passionate about
their tennis.

Girls Country School Classic Teams at Nollamara Tennis Club

D’ARCY SLATER CuP

This event has been previously known as the Boys Regional
Cup, and it’s fantastic that the D’Arcy Slater Foundation has
come on as the event sponsor. The D’Arcy Slater Cup was held
in Geraldton from Thursday 29" — Saturday 31 October 2010.
The state’s best 13 and under regional male tennis players made
the journey to Geraldton to what's become a very important
event in the calendar.

This event followed the same format was the Women in Tennis
Foundation Cup, with a round robin double events and an
Australian Ranking (AR) Singles event. For those who lost in the
early rounds of the singles event, a D’Arcy Cup Classic event was
held, giving all players plenty of tennis. The singles and doubles
results contributed to the final placing of each of the teams.

With the singles and doubles results contributing to the final
placing of each team, the eventual winners were Midwest 1 on
172 points, with South West 1 in second place on 146 points.

Regional Tennis
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Local boy and number 1 seed of the singles event, Josh Bowen
defeated Matthew Taylor in a great match 6-3 6-2.

The WA D’Arcy Slater Cup Team travelled to Sydney in January
2011. Members of the WA team were as follows: Josh Bowen
(Midwest), Matthew Taylor (Moore Districts), Thomas Vellios
(South West) and Michael Offerman (Lower Great Southern).
Tennis West's Community Tennis Officer Paul Oldfield, was the
Team Manager.

WA D'Arcy Slater Cup Team: (From left) Paul Oldfield (Manager),
Josh Bowen, Michael Offerman, Thomas Vellios & Matthew Taylor

WOMEN IN TENNIS FOUNDATION CUP

The 2010 Women in Tennis Foundation Cup was held in
Geraldton from the 25" -27"" October with 13 teams, 64
participants from around regional WA. This is a prestigious
event for young girls and receives praise from zone
administrators, coaches, parents and participants each year.

The Women in Tennis committee once again generously
sponsored the event and were able to send a representative
from the committee to officially open the event and present the
present trophies at the closing ceremony and trophy
presentation on the final day.

The event was competitive with the girls competing in a round
robin doubles event and an Australia Ranking (AR) singles
event. It was a tough fought three days with the eventual
winners being South West 1 on 167 points over Lower Great
Southern 1 on 156 points. Sally Partington defeated Emily
Hannell 7-6 6-4 in a fantastic display of tennis during the singles
final.

The WA Women in Tennis Foundation Cup team that travelled
to Sydney in January were: Sally Partington (LGS), Emily Hannell
(SW), Phoebe Vlahov (Midwest) and Samara Williams (LGS) and
Team Manager Brooke Koenig.

WA Foundation Cup Team: (from left) Brooke Koenig, Emily Hannell, Samara
Williams, Sally Partington & Phoebe Viahov
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REGIONAL ACADEMY

The Department of Sport & Recreation WA continued their
funding of the Tennis West Regional Academy for 2010/11.
The program consisted of:

1) Midwest Regional Academy

2) Individual Scholarship

3) SWAS training camp & Camp Courage

Mid West Academy

The Midwest Academy completed its fifth year of the program,
with ten athletes selected to take part in three training sessions;
Skills, Match play and physical training per week.

Individual Scholarships

Eleven regional athletes travelled to Tasmania and competed in
two Australian Ranking (AR) Tournaments as part of a ten day
tour during June 2011 with Brooke Koenig and Paul Oldfield,
Tennis West Community Tennis Team, as team managers. Many
of the team picked up points and lifted the trophies in their
divisions thus improving their Australian Rankings.

The following athletes met the criteria and were
awarded Individual Scholarships
Corey Bavin (South West)
Sam Galati (South West)
Matthew Haynes (Mid West)
Matthew Taylor (Mid West)
Michael Offerman (Lower Great Southern)
Kevin Banwell (South West)
Louis Asser (South West)
Thomas Vellios (South West)
Mirrante Ryder (South West)
Madeline Muller Hughes (South West)
Phoebe Vlahov (Mid West)
Tsige Lacey (Moore District)
Hayley McAlpine (Moore District)

Interstate Tasmania Tour Team with team managers
Brooke Koenig and Paul Oldfield

SWAS Camp

July ‘11, six members of the South West Academy of Sport
(SWAS) joined the State and National Academies for a training
camp in preparation of tournaments over school holidays. The
camp, conducted by Tennis West State Academy Coach, Len
Cannell and SWAS Head Coach, Christina Ladyman involved
matchplay, training drills and physical preparation. The six
athletes were; Louis Asser, Sam Galati, Corey Bavin, Thomas
Vellios, Emily Hannell and Johaline Enslin.

Regional Tennis
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Camp Courage

In March 2011 both Mid West and South West athletes and
coaches were invited to Margaret River to take part in Camp
Courage. Phoebe Vlahov from the Mid West along with Corey
Bavin, Sam Galati, Louis Asser and Thomas Vellios from the
South West attended the grueling boot camp program
produced by Tennis West State Academy Coach, Len Cannell.
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Tennis League & Tournaments

TENNIS LEAGUE

Tennis West Tennis League Operations was saddened to see the
departure of long time servant Ms. Deanne Maloney who chose
to pursue interests closer to home after eight years in her role.
However, Deanne was replaced most competently by Ms.
Suzanne Kingston. Sue demonstrates considerable knowledge
of Tennis League, both as a player and as past President of
Bayswater Tennis Club.

Tennis West welcomed and acknowledges the support of
Brikmakers — new naming rights sponsor of Tennis League.

Brikmakers Tennis West Tennis League, with 69 clubs, 824
teams and circa 5,500 participants, remains the largest tennis
league association in Australia.

Whilst several competition sectors have demonstrated growth
(Junior Boys 10 and 12 Years, Junior Girls 12 Years, Tuesday
Mixed Night, Wednesday Men’s Night and Women'’s Grasscourt
55), the majority of competitions are down on participation
rates over the past twelve months.

In an attempt to attract new players to Tennis League through a
more flexible season, Tennis West split the existing sixteen week
Saturday Open season into two shorter eight week seasons.

The trial was reviewed and rejected by stakeholders as part of a
wide reaching end of season survey.

Brikmakers 2011 Premier State League Winners were:
Men’s Hensman Park Tennis Club

Women'’s Cottesloe Tennis Club
Junior Boys UWA Tennis Club
Junior Girls Reabold Tennis Club

Tennis West Competitions Committee (with a mandate to guide
both Tennis League and Tournaments policy) will continue to
seek strategies to address declining engagement rates in
particular competition sectors. The proposed pilot of a National
Tennis League in 2011 by Tennis Australia may present such an
opportunity.

TOURNAMENTS

Tennis West Tournament Operations (Jan Budden, Joe
McCarthy and Shane Smedley) has worked diligently over the
past twelve months to create a more relevant tournament
offering for our tournament players.

The 2010 Strategic Airlines WA Open Super AMT was aligned
with Pro Tour events in Kalgoorlie and Esperance to capture
some of Australia’s leading professional players as a lead in to
their ATP/WTA circuit.

The 2010 Player Points Race was established to entice some of
Western Australia’s leading players back into tournament
tennis. $66,500 in prize money was offered over Tennis West's
2010 Summer Tournament Circuit, which comprised Australian
Money Tournaments, Optus Junior Tour events and |.T.N
Banded events. This strategy provided most welcome income
opportunities for both senior and junior players. However, this
initiative failed to attract our senior players, perhaps largely as a
consequence of the strength of Tennis League in this state.

In consultation with Tennis West/Tennis Australia Player
Development and Club League Coordinators, it was agreed that
junior tournaments would be limited to school holiday periods
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and other “open” events would not be scheduled at the same
time as Tennis League fixtures.

Tennis West has witnessed a massive surge in the popularity of
junior Australian Ranking'’s points (Optus Junior Tour) events. It
appears that for the majority of junior tournament players, the
quest for a higher national ranking is paramount. This fact has
seen the demise of a number of non Australian Ranking’s points
(Junior Development Series) events due to dwindling player
entries. Itappears that such JDS players prefer Tennis League
where they are guaranteed of playing every week in a graded
ability competition with their friends.

Tennis West is now committed to improving the service
offering of tournaments around the state, rather than merely
increasing event numbers. Tournament TV and Player
Behaviour Management are strategies Tennis West shall invest
in more heavily as we move forward.

Strategic Airlines WA Open

The Strategic Airlines WA Open was re-energised with one of
the strongest fields recorded in recent times, as well as a new
sponsor - Strategic Airlines. The Open attracted a highly
competitive international field, presenting a serious obstacle for
highly regarded top seeded locals Jessica Moore and Brydan
Klein.

Klein put in a solid effort to make it to the Semi-Finals, however
he was ultimately defeated by fellow Australian Adam Feeney 4-
6, 6-3, 7-6(3) .

The internationals ultimately dominated their local opponents,
with number 2 seed and big hitting Canadian, Erik Chvojka,
taking the honors over Feeney 4-6, 6-4, 6-2 in the Final. Likewise
in the Women'’s event, French number 3 seed Victoria Larriere
defeated Isabella Holland 6-0, 1-6, 6-1 in a capricious final
match.

Goldfields St Ives International
The international victories continued at the Australian Pro Tour
event in Kalgoorlie, Western Australia.

Canadian number7 seed Erik Chvojka and Julia Glushko of Israel
won the men’s and women'’s titles, defeating number 1seed
Brydan Klein (WA) and Queenslander Isabella Holland
respectively.

In the Men’s Doubles Final, Australian duo Joel Lindner & Matt
Red defeated fellow Australians Colin Ebelthite & Adam Feeney.
In the Women'’s Doubles Final, Daniella Dominikovic and local
talent Jessica Moore defeated Timea Babos (Hungary) & Monika
Wejnart (Australia).

Goldfields St lves AMT #2

In conjunction with the Pro Tour, Tennis West also ran an
Australian Money Tournament. The purpose of this event was to
offer match-play to those players who lost in the Qualifying
event, as well as the opportunity to accumulate points and prize
money.

The Women'’s Singles saw the top seed Anna Zaja from
Germany easily conquer Australian Anneliese Tepper in the final
6-0, 6-4, with local West Australian Daniel Alameh claiming
glory in the Men’s Final over fellow Aussie Alex Pattison 6-1, 3-6,
4-6.




Tennis League & Tournaments

Tennis West would like to thank Shane Power and his team at
the Goldfields Tennis Club for once again putting in an
enormous amount of work to ensure the Pro Tour, AMT and
community events could all be hosted at the club.

Cliffs Esperance Tennis International
The last leg of the Pro Tour took players to Esperance for the
Cliffs Esperance Tennis International.

Local talent Brydan Klein (WA) reached his second Pro Tour final
in as many weeks, but was ultimately defeated in straight sets
by No.2 seed Sebastian Rieschick of Germany. Both players
produced outstanding tennis featuring many searching
baseline rallies to the enjoyment of over 500 spectators.

In the women’s draw, Sacha Jones of New Zealand dropped
only one set throughout the tournament and breezed to an
easy victory over Cagla Buyukakcay (TUR) in the Final.

In the Men'’s Doubles Final Australian duo Brydan Klein & Nima
Roshan defeated fellow Australian’s Colin Ebelthite & Adam
Feeney.

In the Women'’s Doubles Final, the Australians continued their
winning streak with Daniella Dominikovic & Jessica Moore
defeating the Japanese team of Remi Tezuka & Chiaki Okadaue.

Tennis West extends a big thank you to Ann and Neville Welke,
Kathy Ashby, Jo Scheer, David Campbell and all the other
wonderful volunteers at the Esperance Tennis Club for their
work in staging an event that really captures the imagination of
the local community and the players

As part of the Community Action Plan, Brooke Koenig organised
bus transportation for all players taking partin the Tour. The
Plan also included group coaching for members of the
community, School Hot Shot Clinics, and Community
demonstrations.

PRO TOUR FINAL RESULTS

Strategic Airlines WA Open Super AMT#1
Men’s Winner Erik Chvojka (Canada)
Women'’s Winner Victoria Larriere (France)

Goldfields St Ives International

Men’s Winner Erik Chvojka (Canada)
Women’s Winner Julia Glushko (Israel)

Men’s Doubles Joel Lindner & Matt Red (Aus)
Women'’s Doubles Daniella Dominikovic &

Jessica Moore (Aus)
Goldfields St lves AMT #2
Men’s Winner Daniel Alameh (Aus)
Women's Winner Anna Zaja (Germany)

Cliff’'s Esperance Tennis International

Men’s Winner Sebastian Rieschick (Germany)
Women’s Winner Sacha Jones (New Zealand)

Men’s Doubles Brydan Klein & Nima Roshan (Aus)
Women'’s Doubles Daniella Dominikovic &

Jessica Moore (Aus)
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Alicia Molik at the Cliffs Esperance Tennis International
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BydanKlein at the Finals Presentation in Esperance




PLAYERS POINTS RACE

Tennis League & Tournaments

Players were able to collect Race Points during the 2010
Summer Tournament Circuit (September — December). Events
included in the Series were AR, AMT and ITN Based events.
Players could only accrue points for the Division in which they
competed. And points could not be transferred between an ITN
Restricted Singles Event and a Masters Division, and vice versa.

A Player’s ranking was calculated on their best 4 results and a
player had to physically win a match to receive Race points.
The Open Events were awarded prize money from 8" position
through to the winner and the Juniors received trophies,
certificates and Hopman Cup 2012 tickets.. See below for list of

winners.

MASTERS MEN'S SINGLES  MASTERS MENS DOUBLES
Winner Winner

James Stuttard Lachlan Dalton
Finalist Finalist

Jaron Stafford Rhys Johnson
3“Place 3“Place
Daniel Alameh Vuk Velikovic
4" Place 4" Place

Zach Itzstein Josh Winterton
5" Place 5" Place

Rhys Johnson Ryan Godwin
6" Place 6" Place

Dylan McCloskey Steven Francis
7" Place 7" Place
Charles Williams Greg Godwin
8" Place 8" Place

Ashwin Sharma

James Stuttard

MASTERS WOMENS SINGLES MASTERS WOMENS DOUBLES
Winner Winner
Marisa Gianotti Astra Sharma
Finalist Finalist
Karis Ryan Caitlin Cridland
3" Place 3" Place
Astra Sharma Marisa Gianotti
4" Place 4" Place
Kristy Jones Ivana Vojinovic
5" Place 5th Place
Anja Dokic Madeline Watson
6" Place 5th Place
Caitlin Cridland Teiwa Casey
7" Place 5th Place
Teiwa Casey Storm Sanders
8" Place 5" Place
Shona Lee Katy O'Shea

5" Place

Karis Ryan

MASTERS BOYS & GIRLS SINGLES

tennis
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Category Winner Finalist
16s Boys Joshua Santiago Vuk Velikovic
16s Girls Kay-Leigh Nicholas | Caitlin Cridland
14s Boys Stefan Raovic Ben Dallinger /

Jack Lyttle
14s Girls Imogen Howes Crista Santiago
12s Boys Louis Corker Lachlan Casey
12s Girls Sara Stikic Askin Arslan
ITN SINGLES

Category Winner Finalist
Male ITN 5.5-6.5 Mike Sutherland Nick Tasaferis
Male ITN 7-8 Lawrence Upston Paul Boland
Male ITN 8.5-9.5 Ben Cribb Cam Webster
Male ITN 10+ Jacob Damstra Kenneth Pang

MASTERS BOYS & GIRLS DOUBLES

Category Winner Finalist
Boys Doubles Daniel Ibbitson Steven Francis
Girls Doubles Caitlin Cridland Kristy Jones
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SCHOOLS CLASSIC METRO

The Metro Schools Classic was held over 7 days in Term one
of the School Calendar. Last year, a record 128 teams
entered the event, and this year that figure increased to 136
teams across 28 different schools.

Belmont Park Tennis Club was again used as a second venue
in order to accommodate the large number of entries.

The Girls Academy Plate was a round robin format
consisting of 7 teams from 6 different schools. Brentwood
Primary School was the eventual winner of the Plate. All
players received a certificate of participation and a
medallion, with the winners and runners up receiving
trophies.

To accommodate the substantial increase in teams, the Boys
Academy Plate event employed a Compass Draw to allow
the boys to finish in the one day at the same venue. A total
of 19 teams from 13 different schools competed in this
event, with Winthrop Primary School taking home the
trophy.

The Girls Herbert Edwards Cup (Years 8 & 9) was made up of
16 teams from 9 different schools. Division 1 of this event
was won by Applecross Senior High School, with Shenton
College winning the Division 2 trophy for the first time in a
number of years.

The Boys Herbert Edwards Cup (Years 8 & 9) had a total of 28
teams from 10 schools all vying for the trophy. Applecross
Senior High School emerged victorious in the Division 1
event, with Perth Modern School taking the honours over
CBC Fremantle in the Division 2 event.

The Girls Mursell/ Slazenger Cup had a total of 24 teams
from 12 schools entered in the event. Using the same format
as the Herbert Edwards Cup, the winners progressed to the
Slazenger Cup Finals and the second placed teams played
off for the Mursell Shield. Applecross Senior High School
continued their winning form by taking out both events.

The Boys Mursell/ Slazenger Cup had a record number of 43
teams from 15 separate schools entered in the event. The
Slazenger Cup was won once again by Applecross Senior
High School, with Carine Senior High School taking the
honours in the Mursell Shield after a tightly contested match
against Applecross SHS.

By securing wins in the Boys and Girls events, Applecross
SHS now have the opportunity to represent WA in the
National Schools Sport Teams Competition in Wagga Wagga
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Facilities & Tennis 2020 Initiative

The 2010/11 financial year for Facilities saw Western Australia
making notable movements forward in the Regional Tennis
Centre initiative as well as club infrastructure improvements,
successful grant applications and our first representation within
the My Tennis application.

TENNIS 2020

Tennis 2020: facility development and management framework
for Australian tennis outlines Tennis Australia’s vision and
approach to nurturing and advancing the prospects of tennis
and its facilities in partnership with the state and territory
Member Associations, clubs, government and other
stakeholders.

The Tennis 2020 document integrates TA'’s vision and strategies
to deliver a sustainable and vibrant environment for tennis
facilities and clubs for the period 2008 to the year 2020.

THE HIERARCHY STRUCTURE

Included in the 2020 strategy was a Facilities Hierarchy
Structure as outlined below:

National Tennis Centres
20 Courts +

Regional Tennis Centres
16 Courts +

Sub Regional Tennis Centres
12 Courts +

Medium Tennis Centres
8 Courts +

Local Tennis Centres
4 Courts +

Each of these individual tiers have a list of selection criteria
attached to them.

WESTERN AUSTRALIA’S REGIONAL TENNIS CENTRES

METROPOLITAN

North Metropolitan Region:

0  SORRENTO Tennis Club
Central West Metropolitan Region:

0  REABOLD Tennis Club
Central East Metropolitan Region:

0  ALEXANDER PARK Tennis Club
East Metropolitan Region:

o  MIDLAND LAWN Tennis Club
South Metropolitan Region:

0  BLUE GUM PARK Tennis Club

COUNTRY
Mid West Region:
0  GERALDTON Tennis Club
Wheatbelt Region:
0  GOLDFIELDS Tennis Club
Great South West Region:
0  BUSSELTON Tennis Club
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WESTERN AUSTRALIA’S SUB REGIONAL TENNIS CENTRES

North Metropolitan Region:
0  WEMBLEY DOWNS Tennis Club
Central West Metropolitan Region:
0  DALKEITH Tennis Club
o0  NEDLANDS Tennis Club
Central East Metropolitan Region:
0  BAYSWATER Tennis Club
0  MTLAWLEY Tennis Club
East Metropolitan Region:
0  LESMURDIE Tennis Club
South Metropolitan Region:
o0 HENSMAN PARK Tennis Club
0  EAST FREMANTLE Tennis Club
0  MELVILLE/PALMYRA Tennis Club

PROGRESS

This year we have seen the final Regional Tennis Centre come
on board - Busselton Tennis Club as the RTC for the Great South
West Region. This means that Western Australia is now the only
state to have their full contingent of Regional Tennis Centres on
board.

We continue to move ahead in leading the pack and WA was
host to the first and only RTC strategic planning session in
March 2011. Delegates from Tennis Australia, Tennis West and
the Regional Tennis Centres ensured that all aspects of tennis
were represented.

We have 3 — 4 RTC meetings annually which are highly
productive sessions. Some of the RTCs have received grants for
new initiatives they are rolling out showing a lot of forward
thinking and investment in grass roots and community tennis.

Some of our centres have brought on full-time managers taking
that one step further to creating and sustaining a viable tennis
infrastructure.

In the 2011/12 financial year we are planning on more forward
momentum for the Regional Tennis Centres and for their
regions.

Australian Open Trophy Tour at Reabold Tennis Centre




Sponsor Acknowledgements

TENNIS AUSTRALIA

Tennis Australia continued to be Tennis West’s largest source of
funding and support. The national body contributes to three
Tennis West employees, and Athlete Development is
substantially managed by Tennis Australia in WA.

Assistance is provided by Tennis Australia in various areas
including programming, IT support, accounts, staff
employment, and marketing, all of which is crucial to the
continued success of Tennis West’s work in Western Australia.

HEALTHWAY

Healthway continued to be a major, and much appreciated,
sponsor of Tennis West, continuing to contribute greatly to our
regional activities. Healthway plays a pivotal role in our program
development for grass-roots tennis, providing exposure to the
game, and to the healthy messages that we promote alongside
it, to thousands of kids throughout Western Australia.

Tennis West, through Health Policies targeted at the club
system, continued to promote healthy eating, positive exercise
experiences, no smoking, SunSmart and controlled drinking
practices. The Association is linked to Healthway through a
three year funding agreement, providing welcome stability to
the regional and participation program areas.

DEPARTMENT OF SPORT AND RECREATION

The Department of Sport & Recreation (DSR) remains a valued
partner and supporter of Tennis West. The Sports Lotteries
funding of Tennis West’s business plan is essential to the
sustainability of our participation and player development
programs, and assists in organisational development and
governance.

The Department of Sport and Recreation remains committed to
Tennis West's High Performance program, with a 3 year funding
agreement that will enable us to continue to provide added
value services and equipment to our athletes and staff. Funding
for The Regional Academy of Sport Program complements this
and continues to provide opportunities for regional athletes in
their development.

BRIKMAKERS

Tennis West would like to officially welcome Brikmakers on
board as the Major Sponsor of Australia’s largest Tennis League
competition, with over 5,500 summer participants.

Brikmakers have signed on as major sponsors for a 3 year term,
and we look forward to a promising and prosperous
relationship with them.

Wy Department of
e Sport and Recreation
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The ongoing commitment from our sponsors has ensured the
continued development of our sport and we extend our thanks
to themall.

Australian Sports Commission
Volunteer Involvement Program
Indigenous Tennis Program

Burswood Park Board
Maintenance and landscaping of State Tennis Centre grounds

CBH Group
CBH Country Week Carnival
CBH Country Zone Challenge

Chambers Investment Planners
WA Tennis Industry Awards - Major Sponsor

D’Arcy Slater Foundation

Regional Boys Cup, for boys in regional WA
Country Road-shows

Regional Boys Camp

KPMG
Tennis West Auditor
KPMG Volunteers Party

LifeCare
Provision of Massage Therapists and Sports Trainers for Perth
ITF Event

Linneys
Linneys Women'’s Tennis League

Pilpel Print
Official Printer for WA Tennis Industry Awards

Sportrophy
Official Trophy Supplier
Sportrophy Club of the Year Award

Sport Surfaces
Sport Surfaces Service to Tennis Award

Sunday Times
Official Newspaper

Constellation Wines
Houghtons Classic White Volunteer of the Year Award

Swan Brewery
The Swan Brewery Coach Achievement Award

Dunlop-Slazenger
The Dunlop-Slazenger Service to Tennis Award

Women In Tennis

Active Girls Live In Camp
Women In Tennis Foundation Cup, for girls in regional WA

BRIKMAKERS




Itis with great pleasure and pride that |
once again have the honour of
presenting our very informative report
for season 2010-2011.

This year has been a very busy year for committee members Bev
Leighton, Bobbie Edwards, Pam Smith, Julie Green, Gaye Hayes,
Kerry Edwards, Wendy Bloor, Deanne Maloney, Delys Dear and
myself Trish Ross.

SPONSORSHIPS

Women in Tennis (WIT) is a not-for-profit committee dedicated
to raising funds for the benefit of up-and-coming young female
tennis players. This year, some of the funds raised have gone
towards the travel expenses of the Pizzey Cup Team who
represented WA in Bendigo, Victoria in May. Captain of the
team, Caitlin Cridland, was undefeated throughout the
tournament and was named in the All-Australian Team. The WA
team was commended for its great sportsmanship and
enthusiasm and the WIT committee is proud to have sponsored
the team.

Individual scholarships were also awarded to Academy Athletes
Storm Sanders and Astra Sharma to fund interstate and
international travel expenses.

ANNUAL GALA DAY

Our annual Gala Day was held on 13 October, 2010 across five
venues - City Beach TC, Belmont TC, Claremont TC, Maylands TC
and Robertson Park Tennis Centre. The Gala Day is one of the
Committee’s major fundraising events, and many thanks must
go to all clubs and volunteers who did a sterling job with
various tasks to make sure their day ran smoothly.

We would like to take this opportunity to thank our very
generous sponsors - Hyundai Hopman Cup, Tennis West and
Usana Nutritional Products. These sponsors have contributed
considerably to the Gala Day and because of this we are able to
pay the generosity forward by way of team and individual
sponsorships throughout the year.

The 2011 Gala Day is scheduled for Wednesday 19 October,
2011 and entry forms are available on the Women in Tennis
website.

FOUNDATION CuP

The Women in Tennis Committee annually sponsors the Girls
Foundation Cup, a 3 day tournament for 13 and under female
junior tennis players from regional WA. This year the event was
held in Geraldton from 25— 27 October, 2010. The tournament
attracted 13 teams and 64 participants from around the State
who were all actively competing for their Zone. Thanks must go
to WIT Treasurer Pam Smith for attending and officially opening
the event.

The best players from the Geraldton Tournament formed a WA
representative team, who competed in Sydney from 10-14
January, 2011. The girls played some hard fought tennis,
defeating South Australia but ultimately going down to the
tough Victorian and NSW teams.

Women in Tennis %
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LEGENDS BREAKFAST

Women in Tennis, in conjunction with Tennis West, once again
hosted the annual Tennis Legends Breakfast on 3 January, 2011
at the Astral Ballroom, Burswood. This year the event merged
past and present day legends with Liz Smylie and Alicia Molik
combining on stage to share their experience and stories about
life on the tour. Hyundai Hopman Cup Tournament Director,
and Wimbledon Doubles Champion, Paul McNamee also made
an impromptu appearance on stage to reminisce with Liz about
their time in the game and their association over the years.
Alicia Molik spoke respectively about what the game has given
her, and talked of her childhood and present day friendship
with Hopman Cup doubles partner, Lleyton Hewitt.

A big thank you to Tennis West and the WIT committee for the
scrumptious and entertaining breakfast and all the hard work
put into running the very successful morning.

HELEN WATERS DOUBLES CHAMPIONSHIPS

On Wednesday 13 April 2011 the 11" Annual WIT Helen Waters
Doubles Championships was held at Robertson Park Tennis
Centre. The day was a huge success with 90 pairs (180 players)
competing at the event. A wonderful luncheon was also
supplied, as well as afternoon nibbles and all-day tea and
coffee. Everyone enjoyed the day and we would like to extend
our thanks to Andrew Stanbury - CEO of Tennis West, Robertson
Park senior ladies, Tournament Director Leon Dhu, Referee
Dawn Hay, and the ladies on the WIT Committee.

We would also like to give thanks to Reg Hall who supplied the
tennis balls for the event. We had 8 divisions playing off in the
final. The overall winners of the day were Deb Taylor and Denise
Cramer from the Floreat Park Tennis Club, who will have their
names engraved on the perpetual Helen Waters Trophy.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank our very generous
sponsors for their support of our events throughout the year.
Our major sponsor for the Gala Day was Gordon Davies of Were
Wines, who presented prizes on the day. Other generous
sponsors included Hayden Gibson from Tennis Only, Sienas
Restaurant and The Wine and Truffle Co. Champagne was
donated by Tennis Seniors and Australian Open towels were
donated by Tennis West.

Winning duo Denise Cramer & Deb Taylor with
Gordon Davis of Were Wines
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TENNIS INDUSTRY AWARDS NIGHT

On Friday May 6, 2011 Bobbie Edwards and husband attended
the 2011 Tennis Industry Awards Night at the South of Perth
Yacht Club. Acknowledgement was made on the night to WIT
committee member Deanne Maloney, who resigned from
Tennis West after 8 years of service. She will be sadly missed.
Deanne has agreed to stay on the WIT committee.

ACTIVE GIRLS LIVE IN CAMP

The 9" annual WIT Active Girls Live in Camp was held this year
from July 9-11. Thirty seven girls from regional towns across the
State, including as far north as Kununurra, made the trip to
Perth for the three-day camp. The camp is an annual event open
to girls aged 9-16 from regional WA, and is aimed at providing
social and coaching opportunities for junior tennis players. Five
female coaches from regional WA lived-in with the girls for the
duration of the camp.

Women in Tennis have been sponsoring this event since its

inception, and are pleased to offer such a great opportunity for
young regional female tennis player.

WIT Active Girls Live in Camp participants

Camp participants undertaking fitness drills

The WIT Committee are available throughout the year to
sponsor country clubs to assist with the coaching costs of
young girls in the country regions. Applications can be made
online through the WIT website.
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I would sincerely like to thank the WIT committee and the staff
at Tennis West for all their hard work throughout the year and
their and willingness to help wherever possible in all matters. It
has been an absolute pleasure to work with you all.

The WIT committee will genuinely miss the services and
friendship of two retiring members of Tennis West - Andrew
Stanbury, CEO, and Deanne Maloney, Tennis League
Coordinator. Their enthusiasm and diligence in all matters has
been beyond the call of duty. We thank them very much and
wish them both every success in the future.

To conclude, | would like to welcome any new members to our
Committee — | know you will find it an extremely rewarding
experience. And finally, to retiring committee members, a big
thank you for all your efforts this year and we wish you well for
the future.

Thank you

Trish Ross
President: WIT Committee
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As another hectic season draws to a
close, we take this opportunity to reflect
on the highs and lows of the season.
Fortunately, a sign of a good year, there
were more highs than lows!

In recognition of her outstanding service to the association, Sue
Tribe received an Honour Badge at this year's Australian Open.
Honour Badges are not handed out lightly, and Sue can be very
proud of her efforts over a number of years. We also
congratulate the following umpires for receiving certificates for
continuous service: Troy Hancock and Chris Lawton (15 years);
Richard Kingsley (20 years); Dawn Hay (30 years). Special
congratulations must be given to Richard and Dawn for their
outstanding achievement. | would also like to convey my
thanks to all of our long-serving members who continue to
attend many local events, year after year. Your selfless
dedication to our association and officiating in WA is very much
appreciated, and together, you truly are the ‘heart and soul’ of
our officiating family.

The high quality of our officials has continued to get
recognition, with a number of our members selected to officiate
at high level tournaments around Australia. Some of these
include:
Patsy Harmer and Sue Tribe officiating at the Burnie
Challenger.
Josh Carter chair umpiring at professional circuit
events.
Jeromy Jones and Matt Hayes selected for Fed Cup.
Troy Hancock selected for Davis Cup.
Several WA umpires officiating at Australian Open,
including first-timers Chris Crosby and Trevor
Mitchell.

Easily the best achievement of the year goes to Josh Carter, for
successfully obtaining his ITF White Badge Chair Umpire
certification. The opportunity of Australian officials to attend a
White Badge Chair course has been few and far between in
recent years, and ever the opportunist, Josh was selected to
attend the Thailand course in November last year.

On the other end of the spectrum, we welcome all of our new
officials this year. For a second year in a row, we have been very
pleased with the performance and attitude of our newer
members, and look excitedly to the future. Congratulations to
those trainee officials who have been elevated to full members
this season.

Along with the new members, we have had several officials try
their hand at different officiating pathways. Several courses for
chair umpires, court supervisors and referees were conducted
here in WA, and some WA members were selected to attend
courses in other states. Our association and Tennis Australia will
continue to support all development pathways for our officials
who have the desire to reach their officiating goals.

This year was also the first year that Cathy Smith didn’t captain
our Hopman Cup ship as Chief of Umpires, and we welcomed
Geof Palmer to the role, along with a number of interstate and
international officials. Our showcase event continues to draw
big names and big crowds, and we are lucky to have such a high
quality event to officiate atin WA.
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Tennis Officiating around the country received a significant
funding boost this year from Tennis Australia, providing more
opportunities for training and development of new and
upcoming officials. Additionally, we saw the appointment of
five ‘Officiating Development Officers’ across the country. WA
was lucky enough to have a dedicated officer appointed by
Tennis Australia, in Sharon Kirkaldy. The Board welcomed this
appointment and has appreciated all of Sharon’s efforts to date.
Sharon has been able to address some of the issues and
pressures that have generally been faced by our volunteer
Board, and has also provided fresh ideas and initiatives for
training and recruitment. We look forward to a continued
strong relationship between Sharon and TOAWA.

At a local level, the TOAWA Board had a busy year. This season
we reinstated a minimum work policy for acceptance to
Australian Open and Hopman Cup, and the Board is currently
negotiating a new 3-year agreement for the Hopman Cup. The
Board also tackled some interesting challenges this season,
including several complaints and protests from members of the
tennis industry. It is important to emphasize that our
Association exists primarily to support the membership. This
includes representation, support, advice, training and feedback.
Whatever challenge we face, you can be assured that the well-
being of our members is our number one priority, and that any
actions or strategies that the Board implements following an
incident or difficult match/tournament, are implemented to get
the best out of our officials. Only then we can achieve a positive
outcome for the tennis industry, while ensuring a positive
outcome for the official(s) involved.

I would like to congratulate this season’s award winners for
excellence in officiating in Western Australia.
. Official of the Year:

Josh Carter

Excellence in the Chair (Norm Cunningham Shield):

Lucian Jonescu

Service to the Association (Hay Tray):

Richard Kingsley

Novice of the Year (Alf Chave Trophy):

Jack Davis

A wonderful season was had by all our award winners, and we
hope that their achievements are seen by our newer members
as something that they can aspire to.

Award winners (from left) Lucian Jonescu, Richard Kingsley. Josh Carter
& Jack Davies were recognised at the 2011 Tennis Industry Awards
Night
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This season we farewell Christine Humble as she moves to
Queensland, and Leanne O’Farrell as she moves to Melbourne.
We wish you both the very best.

At aBoard level, we had some new faces and new roles this
year. With Cathy Smith’s departure prior to last year's AGM, Sue
Tribe picked up the Treasurer position, and Trevor Mitchell
dived courageously into the Secretary role. Troy Hancock joined
the Board last year, only to leave the board for personal reasons
mid-season. The Board then welcomed back Des Michael as
Troy’s replacement. Well done also to Josh (and Troy initially) for
reinvigorating the WA newsletter and producing three editions
this season. We look forward to the next edition of “Let’s Play!”

As | have previously announced, this is my last report as
President, as | step down from the role to get some more time
back for my family. | will continue to officiate and will remain on
the Board for a year as Immediate Past President, and will likely
return to the Board of Management in some capacity in a few
years. | wish the new President all the best and | am sure that
whoever fulfils that role will have the same passion and
commitment for the association that | have felt over the last
three years. | also hope that newer members consider joining
the Board is the future. Appointment on the BOM for TOAWA is
a wonderful opportunity to learn about and contribute to all
aspects of Tennis Officiating programs, policy and discussion
items, both at the state and national level.

I would like to thank all the members of the Board of
Management this season for their wonderful support. Thanks to
Des for your work this year as our chief evaluator and for
jumping on board mid-season. Jill, Dawn and Josh have
continued to provide valuable support and advice over the year,
whilst juggling busy lives outside of TOAWA. | also thank Trevor
Mitchell for having the courage to fill Sue’s relatively big shoes
as Secretary. Not only did you step up to the plate, but you did a
marvellous job and made your own mark in the position.

Finally, | would like to pay special tribute to Sue Tribe. Over the
last three years, Sue has supported me through thick and thin,
and has tirelessly contributed to our association. | don’t think
anyone works harder for our association than Sue, and she
quietly goes about her business in what is often a thankless call
of duty. For you dedication and selfless commitment, for your
tireless support for my role, and for being a wonderful colleague
and friend, | extend my heartfelt thanks!

| wish all of our members every success for the coming season,
and thank them for their continued support of the association.

Matt Hayes
President - TOAWA
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Tennis Seniors Western Australia

Once again your elected committee
has been progressively working
through its agenda endeavouring to
stabilise and grow for the future.

Because we in WA have a tennis centre as a home base, we
must continue to have a membership base and grow our
numbers accordingly.

Maximum use of our facilities by playing in pennants and event
style tournaments will help us achieve our goal.

Tennis Seniors in WA cannot afford to dismantle its membership
role and rely on tournament entry fees and handouts from
various parties to survive, as do some other states. This focus
does not always parallel Tennis Seniors Australia operational
plans but we believe that with a consultative approach a
mutually beneficial result is achievable.

TENNIS SENIORS AUSTRALIAN CHAMPIONSHIPS

Under the chairmanship of Michael Harris, this committee has
covered all areas in the lead up to next January. We are looking
for sponsorship monies or good to help this event and any help
from members will be appreciated. All the preliminary work is
just about finalised and we now await our WA members and
players 35+ to nominate for the teams and individual events.

FINANCE

David Legge and his subcommittee have again diligently
managed the financial side of Tennis Seniors WA. Despite
adverse pressures we have returned a small profit and with
patronage of Robertson Park continuing to climb the future
looks promising.

MEMBERSHIP

This year Margaret Smith and Pam Smith have undertaken this
area and it appears we have halted the past persistent decline

of membership numbers. Many new members have joined and
numerous ex-members have rejoined and the committee look
optimistically for this to continue.

PENNANTS

Colin Griffin has taken over this portfolio and after a first season
of summer pennants run by Tennis West we had 12 teams of 4,
(2 men and 2 women). Since Christmas the seniors resumed
running our own pennants and the numbers increased to 16
teams. We also have 13 teams in the current winter season.
Sponsorship of our summer pennants is by Tyrepower
Marketing and Kevin and Jo Wren of Tyerpower Pinjarra sponsor
our winter pennants. We appreciate their support and ask all
members to use the Tyrepower brand wherever possible.

GROUNDS

Led by our Vice President Rob Comley this section operates at
optimum levels for the benefit of our members.
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SECRETARY

New Committee member Isobel Lockyer has enthusiastically
embraced her role. She diligently gets things done and this
provides better comfort and enjoyment for our tennis
members. Isobel also helps out in other areas of committee
work.

SCHOOL MATCHES

Rob Ockerby took over this role and continues the seniors
winning run against the private school teams. Other matches
are in the pipeline so listen for more information.

SPONSORSHIP

This is always a hard job. Rob Ockerby continues to promote our
cause. Tiger Turf is a main sponsor and we thank them for their
continued support. | ask all members to advise if they have any
thoughts or prospects for future sponsors.

SocIAL MATCHES

These matches against various clubs and organisations have
been capably organised by Pam and Cec Gardiner and Bob and
Heather Gardner. These matches help promote Tennis Seniors
and are a valuable tool in our move forward.

Bob and Heather, after many years of unselfish commitment
stood down this year to follow other dreams like driving and
caravanning. Pam and Cec have also express a desire to ‘retire’
from the position, and we greatly acknowledge their
contribution to Tennis Seniors. This means we are seeking
volunteers to step up and takeover this area.

TOURNAMENTS

The 2010 State Championships were initially a joint production
between Tennis West and Tennis Seniors, however Tennis
Seniors took over sole responsibility due to financial reasons.

As the first tournament open to non-members, it had very
limited success. A change from October to
November/December and a clash with Tennis West Pennants
did not help.

The 2011 State Championships will be an ITF Grade 3 eventso it
is hoped that numbers will increase further. The shift back to
October will also help. Other tournaments and special event
days continue to promote Tennis Seniors and we aim to
introduce at least 2 more events this year.

SocCIAL & CATERING

Rhonda Fletcher leads this portfolio and continues to introduce
different ‘eats’ to the menu. Social events and special event
days continue to return a financial dividend for seniors and our
thanks go to Rhonda and her many helpers for the job they
carry out.

WEBSITE

Tennis Seniors WA have changed our website and can now be
located on Tennis Seniors Australia and Tennis Wes t sites.
Go to www.tennis.com.au/seniorswa and follow the prompts.
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Tennis Seniors Western Australia

VETSCENE

Bobbie Edwards accepted this task and has progressively
adapted to the position. We have seen our Vetscene change
from a printed and posted at cost version, to an electronic
version thankfully organised by Tennis West. This means we
only post out to those members not on email. This is a great
saving to Tennis Seniors. All concerned, the helpful staff at
Tennis West, Debra Kirk in our office and Bobbie Edwards,
please take a bow, as the end product is greatly appreciated.

BAR

This year we appointed two bar managers, Jhil Taylor and
Rhonda Fletcher, to take control of the facility. Both have done a
fantastic job and have increased bar takings. The range of stock
has expanded and members have often been heard
commenting favourably on prices and presentation.

A grant from Bendigo Bank in North Perth provided the bar with
a cash register and this has helped in the successful running of
the bar.

The extra opening hours volunteered by Jhil and Rhonda are
greatly appreciated and the committee and members than you
both for the financial benefits you have brought to the
Association.

TENNIS WEST

Tennis West through CEO Andrew Stanbury have been
extremely helpful in many areas, particularly the Vetscene and
the website. We wish to continue working with them ina
friendly and helpful manner in areas where we can improve our
performance or procedures. Their support is most welcome and
thankfully accepted.

COURT MANAGEMENT

This past year Michael Maartensz from Turf Care took over this
contract from Leon Dhu and has continued to present the
centre in a professional way, which brings credit to himself and
Tennis Seniors. His many staff are helpful and obliging and
Tennis Seniors are thankful for their support.

SECRETARY

This year John Amor took over this position and brought
immediate change. Coming from a business background and
not being ‘well known’ among the membership, John has gone
about his role with enthusiasm. He walked into a ‘brick wall’ for
the first 5-6 months working on systems etc that were
eventually thrown out by TSA. This steeled him for anything
that may arise. He has worked extremely well with all
committee members and his ‘fatherly’ advice is usually heeded.
Thank you John!
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SENIOR OF THE YEAR

Senior of the Year for 2010-11 was announced at the last AGM.
Rhonda Fletcher was a unanimous choice for the award.
Catering for most events, selling raffle tickets etc are all ina
day’s work!

Making a large boiler of soup for 50-60 players on pennant
nights in winter has increased the number of players who come
into the function room at 10 or 11pm to reminisce and maybe
have a red or white. All of this is done cheerfully and willing BUT
if you don’t wash up, clean up and put away then watch out!

Rhonda your honour was richly deserved!

CONCLUSION

This year has been quite tumultuous in many ways. A
reasonably new committee has endeavoured to promote
Tennis Seniors WA at all times. This is achieved only by the
help/volunteering of our members to help wherever possible. A
big thank you for all their support.

I wish to acknowledge the support of Rhonda for her many
extra chore she has accomplished during the past year and still
maintained her household position.

Once again, grateful thanks to all for this past year and | wish

everyone every success for 2011-12.

Kevin Fletcher
President — Tennis Seniors WA

Tennis % Seniors
Western Australia
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Reporting on the State Tennis Centre
could not begin without commenting on
the intense speculation during 2010-11
as to whether the centre has a future at
all.

The year was punctuated with regular media comment on
the likelihood that the Barnett Liberal government would
seek to locate WA’'s new oval stadium in the Burswood
Peninsula, home of the centre. This speculation became
reality when, in June, the announcement was made that
Burswood will be the site of the stadium, although the exact
location is yet to be decided. This puts the future of the
State Tennis Centre (STC) very much in doubt, and the
Tennis West Board has been in regular contact with the
government and begun considering alternatives for Tennis
West, in preparation should the government express its
interest in moving Tennis West from the site.

The STC again hosted the opening round ‘State League
Blockbuster’, featuring all the Men’s and Women'’s State
League teams. WA’s home of tennis as usual staged a myriad
of other tennis events, large and small, from Harmony Day
to Country Zone Challenge, the School Children’s Classic,
and a series of Hot Shots Challenges. It is a venue that
juniors in particular love to come to.

In February the centre hosted a group of talented juniors
and a large entourage of officials and coaches on a Beijing
International Group tour, representing China Tennis. This
followed on from the inaugural such tour the previous year.
Joe McCarthy again coordinated a 2 week program of
coaching, match-play and tournament participation for the
group. This really was a great success once again and China
Tennis is keen to expand the relationship for years to come.

The centre again played host to a number of Hopman Cup
events, including the annual Pro Am event that sees the
stars of the Hopman Cup play alongside local sponsors and
other stakeholders. It is also used as the practice venue for
the players through the course of Hopman Cup.

The completion of the Country Zone Challenge in April saw
the centre host Tennis West's Volunteer Cocktail Party,
bringing together and recognising nearly 300 of our State’s
tennis volunteers in a social setting. There was a small
distraction in the form of the Royal Wedding but this added
to festive feel. A prize of an expenses paid trip to the
Australian Open was won on the night by Diane Warburton
(Upper Great Southern RDA), and Motive Travel generously
donated a travel and accommodation package.

We remain pleased that the centre is used regularly by a
number of schools, notably Trinity College who base a full
tennis program at the venue in terms 1 and 4, that utilises
the courts up to 6 days a week.

The functions business at the STC enjoyed a busy year,
following a difficult 2009-10. Julie Wilson, Functions
Manager, oversaw a net financial result that exceeded the
budgeted result, which was very pleasing. We have a range
of corporate clients, many of whom have been booking the
centre for a number of years. Constellation Wines continued
their sponsorship of the STC, and we thank them for their
support.

A second phase of court re-surfacing was undertaken to
remedy those courts that were not part of the previous
year's extensive work. Tennis Australia’s National Court
Rebate Scheme and the Department of Sport and
Recreation (DSR) both assisted with funding. In addition t
DSR supported the installation of a new irrigation system at
the behest of the Burswood Park Board, there being a need
to move the centre on to a system independent of the
adjacent golf course. The STC is now over 14 years old and
showing its age. If it is to remain further extensive capital
and maintenance works will be required, BUT this is by no
means guaranteed

Joe McCarthy with the 2011 China Tennis Tour group participants

Diane Warburton (UGS Zone RDA) at the
2011 Volunteers Cocktail Party
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Office Bearers, Life Members & Committees

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Dean Williams

President

Michael Lee Senior Vice President
Jim Davies Junior Vice President
Bill Price Treasurer

Ray Collins Director

Wayne Firns Director

Hayden Gibson Director

Loretta Hughes Director

Siobhan Drake-Brockman  Director

LIFE MEMBERS

Alan Hicks OAM
Dene Rundle

Barry Sanders OAM
Harry Spilsbury
Clive Wilderspin

HON AUDITOR

KPMG

DELEGATES TO TENNIS AUSTRALIA

Dean Williams
Jim Davies

STAFF

Chief Executive Officer
Andrew Stanbury

Finance Coordinator
Elaine Campbell

Community Tennis Manager
Brooke Koenig

Community Tennis Officer
Elle Mazza

Community Tennis Officer
Paul Oldfield (commenced Sept. 2010)

Marketing & Events Coordinator
Aly de Souza

Facilities Officer
Vanessa Brown

Competitions Manager
Shane Smedley

Tennis League Assistant — P/T
Deanne Maloney (Resigned May 2011)

Tennis League Assistant— P/T
Deanne Maloney (Commenced May 2011)

Tournament Operations
Jan Budden

Tournament Operations
Joe McCarthy

State Academy-Head Coach
Len Cannell

Talent Development Coach
Andrew Roberts

Functions Manager
Julie Wilson

Functions Assistant-P/T
Kiera Duckworth

Maintenance Officer — P/T
John Papa

Reception—P/T
Sharon Lampard
Shelly Pascoe (Commenced May 2011)

COMMITTEES

Finance

Bill Price (Chairperson)
Andrew Stanbury
Michael Lee

Dean Williams

Competitions Committee

Hayden Gibson (Chairman)

Shane Smedley

Deanne Maloney

Henry Willis

Ken Brown

Loretta Hughes

Sue Kingston (commenced May 2011)

Awards Night Committee
Ray Collins

Donna Thomas

Dene Rundle

Matt Bull

Elle Mazza

Aly de Souza

Women in Tennis

Trish Ross (President)

Bev Leighton (Advisory Vice President)
Pam Smith (Treasurer)

Bobbie Edwards (Secretary)

Deanne Maloney (Midweek League Representative)
Wendy Bloor

Kerry Edwards

Julie Green

Jan Hatch

Gaye Hayes

Delys Dear
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Office Bearers, Life Members & Committees &

AFFILIATED ASSOCIATIONS

Tennis Officials Australia— WA Division

President:
Secretary:
Treasurer:

Matt Hayes
Trevor Mitchell
Sue Tribe

Tennis Seniors Western Australia

President:
Secretary:
Treasurer:

Vice President:
Patron:
Committee:

Kevin Fletcher
John Amor
David Legge
Rob Comley
Clive Wilderspin
Rob Ockerby
Rhonda Fletcher
Isobel Lockyer
Pam Smith,
Margaret Smith
Bobbie Edward
Colin Griffin

Jhil Taylor
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Significant Achievements

CASEY DELLACQUA

Australian Ranking: 9

Singles
2011 Bundaberg ITF

Doubles

2011 Mildura ITF

2011 Sydney ITF

2011 Ipswitch ITF

2011 Bundaberg ITF

2011 Madrid International
2011 French Open (Womens)
2011 French Open (Mixed)
2011 Birmingham International

Champion

Champion
Champion
Champion
Champion
Semi Finalist
R16
Champion
Semi Finalist

MATT EBDEN

Australian Ranking: 3

Singles
2011 AEOGON International

(Queen’s Club)

2011 Cremona International

2011 Dallas International

2011 Caloundra International
2011 Australian Open

2011 Sydney International

2011 Brisbane International

2010 Salvador International

2010 Great Britain Futures

2010 Loughborough International

Doubles

2011 Busan International

2011 Johannesburg International
2011 Dallas International

2011 Delray Beach International
2011 Caloundra International
2011 Australian Open

2011 Sydney International

2011 Brisbane International
2010 Salvador International
2010 Bangkok International
2010 Great Britain Futures

R32

Semi Finalist
Semi Finalist
Semi Finalist
R128

R32

Quarter Finalst
Semi Finalist
Champion
Quarter Finalist

Quiarter Finalist
Finalist

Semi Finalist
Quarter Finalist
Champion

R64

R16

Quarter Finalist
Semi Finalist
Semi Finalist
Finalist

BRYDAN KLEIN

Australian Ranking: 12

Singles
2011 Germany Futures (F8)

2011 Netherlands Futures (F2)
2011 Turkey Futures (F15)
2010 Aptos International
2010 Australia Futures (F6)
2010 Australia Futures (F7)
2010 Australia Futures (F8)
2010 Australia Futures (F9)
2010 Australia Futures (F10)
2010 Australia Futures (F11)
2010 New Zealand Futures (F1)
2010 Australia Future (F13)

Doubles

2011 Germany Futures (F8)
2011 Turkey Futures (F14)
2011 Turkey Futures (F15)
2010 Aptos International

Quarter Finalist
Semi Finalist
Semi Finalist
Quarter Finalist
Semi Finalist
Quarter Finalist
Quarter Finalist
Finalist

Finalist

Finalist

Finalist

Quarter Finalist

Champion
Champion
Champion
Quarter Finalist

Ao Savies

JESSICA MOORE

Australian Ranking: 13

Singles
2011 Rome-Tiro A Volo ITF

2011 Pozoblanco ITF
2010 Les Contamines ITF
2010 Darwin ITF

2010 Kalgoorlie ITF

Doubles

2011 Burnie ITF

2011 Kuala Lumpur International
2011 Rome-Tiro A Volo ITF

2011 Compenhagen International
2011 Wimbedon

R32
R16
Semi Finalist
Semi-Finalist
Semi-Finalist

Semi Finalist
Finalist
Semi-Finalist
Semi-Finalist
R64

DANIEL ALAMEH

Australian Ranking: 106

Singles
2010 WA AMT #2

2011 ATM Platinum AMT #2

Doubles
2010 WA AMT #2

Champion

Quarter Finalist

Champion

ROBERT ALLAN

Australian Ranking: 112

Sinlges

2010 WA State Clay Court Gold AMT

2011 Nollamara Grasscourt Open

Doubles
WYC City of Salisbury AMT

2010 WA State Clay Court Gold AMT

Finalist
Finalist

Quiarter Finalist

Finalist

2010 WA Open Suoer AMT #1 Quarter Finalist

2011 Gosford AMT Gold #2
2011 Nollamara Grasscourt Open
ATM White AMT

Quiarter Finalist

Champion

Quarter Finalist

TEIWA CASEY
Australian Ranking: 156

Singles
2010 WA State Grasscourt

2010 Snap Mt Lawley Classic

Finalist
Champion

NINA CATOVIC

Australian Ranking: 45

Singles
WA Open Super AMT #1

Semi Finalist
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Significant Achievements

ANJA DOKIC

Australian Ranking: 160

Singles
2011 Geraldton Easter Open

2010 WA State Hard Courts

2011 Geraldton Easter Open

Quarter Finalist

2010 WA State Clay Court Gold AMT Finalist

2010 WA State Synthetic Semi Finalist
2010 Snap Mt Lawley Classic Semi Finalist
2010 Sorrento Junior Hard Courts Champion

WA Junior Open Finalist

2010 WA State Open Age Champion
Doubles

2010 WA Open Super AMT #1 Quarter Finalist
2010 WA State Synthetic Champion
2010 WA State Clay Court Gold AMT Semi Finalist
2010 WA State Closed Hard Courts Semi Finalist
2010 Sorrento Junior Hard Courts Champion
Australian Ranking: 468

Singles

2011 Minelect WA State Hard Courts Quarter Finalist
2010 WA Junior Open Champion
2010 SA Junior Open Champion
2011 Busselton Junior Open Champion
2010 Sorrento Junior Hard Courts Semi Finalist

Quarter Finalist

Doubles

2010 Optus 12s Nationals Champion
2010 WA Junior Open Champion
2010 SA Junior Open Champion
WA State Closed Hard Courts Champion
2010 Sorrento Junior Hard Courts Semi Finalist
2011 Minelect WA State Hard Courts Finalist
Australian Ranking: 303

Singles

2011 Minelect WA State Hard Courts Finalist

2010 WA State Grasscourt Quarter Finalist
2011 Hensman Park Junior Open Champion
2010 WA State Closed Hardcourts Champion
2010 WA State Open Age Finalist

2010 WA State Grasscourt Champion
Doubles

Quarter Finalist

2011 Midland Open Finalist
2010 Sungold Junior Grasscourt Open  Champion
2010 WA Junior Open Finalist
2010 WA State Hard Courts Champion
2010 WA State Open Age Semi Finalist
Australian Ranking: 66

Singles

2011 Midland Open Finalist

2011 Nollamara Grasscourt Open Finalist

2010 SA Platinum AMT #2 Champion
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KATY O’SHEA (CONT.)

Singles (cont.)

2010 AMT Platinum #2 Semi Finalist
2010 WA Open Super AMT #1 Quarter Finalist
2010 SA Platinum AMT #3 Champion
Doubles

2011 Geraldton Easter Open
2011 Midland Open

2010 SA Platinum AMT #2

2010 WA Open Super AMT #1
2010 SA Platinum AMT bSeries #1

Champion
Champion
Champion
Semi Finalist
Quiarter Finalist

Australian Ranking: 56

Singles

2010 WA State Hardcourts Champion
2010 ATM Platinum AMT #2 Champion
2010 ATM AMT Semi Finalist
2010 WA Open Super AMT Quarter Finalist
Doubles

2011 NSW AMT Platinum Semi Finalist
2010 WA AMT #2 Finalist
STORM SANDERS

Australian Ranking: 36

Wildcard recipient into the main draw of the 2011 Australian

Open Junior Even

Singles

2011 Geraldton Easter Tournament Champion
2010 ATM Platinum AMT #2 Finalist

2010 WA Open Super AMT #1 Quarter Finalist
Doubles

2010 WA Open Super AMT #1 Semi Finalist
Australian Ranking: 89

Singles

2011 Geraldton Easter Open Semi Finalist
2011 Skycity Darwin Open Quarter Finalist
2011 Skycity NT Open Semi Finalist
2011 Midland Open Quarter Finalist
2011 Esperance Open Finalist

2010 WA AMT #2 Semi Finalist
2010 WA State Synthetic Champion
2010 WA Open Super AMT #1 Quarter Finalist
2010 CGS Darwin Open Quarter Finalist
2010 WA State Closed Hard Courts Quiarter Finalist
2010 Snap Mt Lawley Classic Semi Finalist
Doubles

2011 Skycity NT Open Finalist

2011 Geraldton Easter Open Champion
2011 Skycity Darwin Open Semi Finalist
2010 QLD AMT #4 Quarter Finalist
2010 WA AMT #2 Semi Finalist




Tournament Results and Awards

JULY — DECEMBER 2010
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Boys Singles: Men'’s Singles
12/U Ben Webster Open James Stuttard
14 /U Damien Rocky Consolation: Ryan Godwin
16/U Vuk Velickovic
Men’s Doubles
Boys Doubles: Open Kurt Robinson / Jake Robinson
12/U Rigby Dowland / Ben Webster
14 /U Stefan Raovic / Damien Rocky Women’s Singles
16/U Bjarke Boisen / Yasu Sakaguchi Open Marisa Gianotti
Girls Singles Women'’s Doubles
12/U Maddison Inglis Open Anja Dokic / Ivana Vojinovic
14/U Crista Santiago
16/U Anja Dokic Boys Singles:
12/U Louis Corker
Girls Doubles: 14 /U Damien Rocky
12/U Sasha Bolweg / Tenille Waters
14/U Imogen Howes / Megan Kauffman Boys Doubles:
12/U Louis Corker / Ethan Gill
ITN Bands 14 /U Shawn Howtow / Damien Rocky
Boys ITN 9-5+ Christian Harding
BoysITN 7.9-9 Benjamin Thomas Girls Singles
Girls ITN 9.5+ Isaleyarna Bailey 12/U Askin Arslan
14/U Sasha Bollweg
Girs Doubles
12/U Askin Arslan / Mervegul Nuhana
Men'’s Singles
Open Jaron Stafford
Consolation:  Hayden Litis
Men’s Doubles Boys Singles
Open Miles Armstrong / Rhys Johnson 12/U Louis Corker
14/U Ben Dallinger
Women'’s Singles 16/U Vuk Velickovic
Open Shona Lee
Boys Doubles
Women'’s Doubles 12/U Louis Corker / Ethan Gill
Open Caitlin Cridland /Astra Sharma 14/U Ben Dallinger / Jake Robinson
16/U Robin Pfister / Kanichi Shioji
Boys Singles:
12/U Louis Corker Girls Singles
14 /U Stefan Raovic 12/U Tasha Howtow
16/U Joshua Santiago 14/U Anja Dokic
18/U Linus Goh
Girls Doubles
Boys Doubles: 12/U Tasha How / Hina Sakaguchi
12/U Louis Corker / Ethan Gill 14/U Anja Dokic / Ivana Vojinovic
14 /U Shawn Howtow / Damien Rocky
ITN Bands
Girls Singles Male ITN 7-8 Eric Spaulding
Male ITN8.5-9.5  Jesse Black-Cataldo
12/U Maddison Inglis
1410 imogen Howes
16/U Kay-Leigh Nicholas
Boys Singles
Girls Doubles: 12/U Scott Jones
12/U Chelsea Church / Mervegul Nuhana 12/U Consolation Kaige Silcock
14/U Anna Maria Cerinza / Crista Santiago 14/U Ben Dallinger
14/U consolation Tyler Tranquille
ITN Bands 16/U Robin Pfister
Male TN 8.5-95  Michael Hardman 16/U Consolation  Antonino Rechichi
Male ITN 10+: Jacob Damstra
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WA JUNIOR OPEN (GREENWOO ) (CONT.) STRATEGIC AIRLINES WA OPEN SUPER AMT#1 (CONT.)

Boys Doubles Men’s Doubles
12/U Lachlan Casey / Scott Jones Open Erik Chvojka (CAN) / Mikhal Statham (NZ2)
14/U Ben Dallinger / Jake Robinson
16/U Steven Francis / Daniel Ibbitson Women’s Singles
Open
Girls Singles Consolation Madeline Watson
12/U Tenille Waters
12/U consolation Sara Stikic Women'’s Doubles
14/U Maddison Inglis Open Victoria Larriere (FRA) / Melanie South (GB)
14/U consolation Tasha Howtow

16/U

Caitlin Cridland

GOLDFILEDS ST IVES INTERNATIONAL AMT#2

Girls Doubles o
12/U Sara Stikic / Tenille Waters Men’s Singles )
14/U Sasha Bollweg / Maddison Inglis Open Daniel Alameh
Consolation: Josh Boots
ITN Bands }
Male ITN85-9.5  Benjamin Cribb Men's Doubles _
Male ITN 10+ Jacob Damstra Open Daniel Alameh / Paul Kramberger

Women’s Singles

Open Anna Zaja (GER)
CITY OF JOONDALUP WA STATE CLOSED Consolation Caitlin Cridland
(I\SIGLSSMCJE_S S Women's Doubles
pen ack ltsztein Open Marissa Gianotti / Anna Zaja (GER)
Consolation Stefan Raovic

Men’s Doubles
Open

Zack Itsztein / Rhys Johnson

MAURIZIO RESTAURANT WA STATE GRASSCOURT AMT

Men'’s Singles
Women's Singles Open Jaron Stafford
Open Karis Ryan Consolation Scott Culpin
Special Grant Chadwick

Women’s Doubles

Open Caitlin Cridland / Kim Fisher Men’s Doubles
Open Greg Godwin / Charles Williams
Boys Singles
12/U Lachlan Casey Women'’s Singles
12/U consolation Dylan Wood Open Marisa Gianotti
14/U Jack Lyttle Consolation Imogen Howes
14/U consolation Scott Webster
18/U Ryan Godwin Women's Doubles
18/U consolation Jordan Buxton Open Teiwa Casey / Marisa Gianotti
Boys Doubles Boys Singles
12/U Rigby Dowland / Corey Robinson 10/U William Hann
14/U Scott Jones / Jack Lyttle 12/U Rigby Dowland
12/U consolation Elliot Smith
Girls Singles 14/U Jack Lyttle
12/U Sara Stikic 14/U consolation Shaun Howtow
12/U consolation Hina Sakaguchi 16/U James Mitchell
14/U Maddison Inglis

14/U consolation

Amelia Jones

Boys Doubles
12/U

Rigby Dowland / Corey Robinson

Girls Doubles 14/U Luke Keddie / Jack Dowland
12/U Erika Bollweg / Gurkawal Kaur Bajaj 16/U Dominic Bechard / James Mitchell
14/U Sasha Bollweg / Megan Kauffman
Girls Singles
12/U Chelsea Church
12/ Conslaton  EmmaJane Wellman
14/U Imogen Howes
Men'’s Singles 14/U consolation Taylor Nicholas
Open Erik Chvojka (CAN)
Consolation Ben Dallinger Girls Doubles
12/U Mervagul Nuhana / Sara Stikic
14/U Aura Beccerra—Cerinza / Alexandra Dique




Tournament Results and Awards
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EAST FREMANTLE JUNIOR TENNIS CLASSIC

Boys Singles
10/U

10/U consolation
12/U
12/U consolation
14/U
14/U consolation
16/U
16/U consolation

Boys Doubles
10/U

12/U
14/U
16/U

Girls Singles
10/U

10/U Consolation
12/U
12/U Consolation
14/U
14/U Consolation
16/U

Girls Doubles
12/U
14/U

Kyle Potter
Cameron McVeigh
Dino Bisignano
Tom Golden
Brock Spencer
Benjamin Thomas
Aidan Crabb
Lucas Annese

Lachlan Hardy / Michael Keating
Dino Bisignano / Tristan Galati
Adrian Marsegaglia / Brock Spencer
Aidan Crabb / Nick Watkins

Chesca Hanlin
Rachel Mellor
Brittany Marzec
Madeline Wenham
Aleksandra Markovic
Imogen Bradbury
Natalija Tasovac

Sarah Kenny / Tara Kotula
Aleksandra Markovic / Xin Yie Ng

SNAP MOUNT LAWLEY TENNIS CLASSIC

Men'’s Singles
Open
Consolation
Over 35

Over 55

Men’s Doubles
Open

Women'’s Singles
Open
Consolation

ITN

Women’s Doubles

Open

Mixed Doubles
Open

Boys Singles
10/U

12/U
12/U Consolation
14/U
14/U Consolation
16/U
16/U Consolation
18/U
18/U consolation

Rhys Johnson
Louis Asser

Troy Hargreaves
Michael Sutherland

Sam Ashenden / Charles Williams

Teiwa Casey
Natalija Tasovac
Claudia Rohde

Hannah Appleyard / Astra Sharma

Sam Ashenden / Cassandra McCloskey

Connor Enslin
Mats Nikalsson
Jacob Palinski
Jack Dowland
Connor McAlpine
Ryan Godwin
Chris Bell

Matt Bell

Nathan Ridout
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SNAP MOUNT LAWLEY TENNIS CLASSIC (CONT)

Boys Doubles
12/U

14/U
16/U

Girls Singles
12/U

12/U consolation
14/U
14/U Consolation
16/U
16/U consolation

Girls Doubles
12/U
14/U

Rigby Dowland / Ben Webster
Luke Keddie / Jack Dowland
Alex Jones / James Mitchell

Sara Stikic

Julia Rakocevic
Jelena Stojanovic
Daisy Coffey
Natalija Tasovic
Sarah Campion

Erika Bollweg / Sara Stikic
Amelia Jones / Charleen Tiwari

JANUARY —-JULY 2011

SUNSMART APPLECROSS JUNIOR TOURNAMENT

Boys Singles
10/U

12/U
14/U

14/U Consolation

16/U

Boys Doubles
12/U

14/U
16/U

Girls Singles
12/U

14/U
14/U Consolation

Girls Doubles
12/U

Tristan Galati
Neil Mabee

Alex Downey
Henry Moon
Jonothan Pinardi

Neil Mabee / Liam McGeough
Adrian Marsegaglia / Brock Spencer
Aidan Crabb / Nick Watkins

Harri Proudfoot
Danika Humphries
Tessa Moon

Olivia Rimmer / Lily West

NORTH BEACH JUNIOR CLASSIC

Boys Singles
10/U

12/U
14/U
16/U

Boys Doubles
12/U

14/U
16/U

Girls Singles
10/U

12/U
14/U
16/U

Connor Enslin
Ben Webster
Corey Bavin
Louis Asser

Luca Bonini / Daniel Downey
Corey Bavin / Scott Webster
Louis Asser / Sheldon Scott

Eve Cohen
Sara Stikic
Amelia Jones
Briony Corrins




Tournament Results and Awards

NORTH BEACH JUNIOR CLASSIC (CONT.)

ek dgea

Girls Doubles

12/U Askin Arslan / Chelsea Church
14/U Tasha Howtow / Amelia Jones
16/U Briony Corrins / Rebecca Stone

CITY OF MELVILLE JUNIOR TOURNAMENT

Boys Singles

10/U Adam Kehane
12/U Neil Mabee

14/U Tyler Hind

16/U Jonothan Pinardi

Boys Doubles

12/U Neil Mabee / Angus Barber

14/U Sam Alexander / Jesse Hartree

Girls Singles

10/U Elsie Dobbs

12/U Madeline Wenham

14/U Jelena Stojanovic

16/U

Girls Doubles

12/U Catherine Gabellish / Vanessa Taylor
14/U Andrea Chitty / Kristen Twine

CBH GRouP COUNTRY WEEK

Men'’s Singles

Championship David Bignell
Consolation Michael Galante
Open B Grade Carl Perkins

Men'’s Team Events
A Grade
Over 45

Bridgetown/Busselton/Bunbury
Busselton / Bunbury

Women’s Singles

Championship Jennifer Krummenacher

Women’s Team Events

Open Narrogin

Doubles Mandurah

Over 45 Bunbury / Busselton
Boys Singles

12/U Kevin Banwell

12/U Teams Goldfields / Australind
14/U Corey Bavin

14/U Teams Bunbury / Harvey
16/U Samuel Galati

16/U Teams Wubin

Girls Singles

12/U Hayley McAlpine
12/U Teams Wubin / Kojonup
14/U Bridget Addis

14/U Teams Merrifield Park

16/U Holly Kerr

Boys Singles
10/U

12/U
12/U consolation
14/U
14/U consolation
16/U
16/U consolation

Boys Doubles
10/U

12/U
14/U
16/U

Girls Singles
10/U

12/U
12/U consolation
14/U
14/U Consolation
16/U

Girls Doubles
12/U
14/U

Men'’s Singles
Open
Consolation

Men’s Doubles
Open

Women’s Singles
Open
Consolation

Women'’s Doubles

Open

Boys Singles
10/U

12/U
12/U Consolation
14/U
14/U Consolation
16/U
16/U Consolation
18/U

Boys Doubles
12/U

14/U
16/U

Girls Singles
10/U

12/U
12/U Consolation
14/U
14/U Consolation
16/U
16/U Consolation

Owen Kirkham

Ben Webster
Incomplete

Scott Jones
Incomplete

David Van Der Ende
Incomplete

Jacob Damstra / Victor Van De Graaf
Incomplete
Incomplete
Incomplete

Rachel Mellor
Sara Stikic
Incomplete
Ivana Vojinovic
Incomplete
Kristy Jones

Incomplete
Incomplete

GUNDRY’S CARPET CHOICE MIDLAND OPEN

Cameron Fenner
Matt Smart

Craig Campbell / Joel Pleydell

Marisa Gianotti
Jesse Burrell

Marisa Gianotti / Katy O’Shea

Antonio Josifocski
Lachlan Casey
Alex Edwards
Scott Webster
Jonothan Pinardi
Louis Asser

Chris Bell

Nathan Ridout

Luca Bonini / Daniel Downey
Jack Dowland / Luke Keddie
Alex Jones / James Mitchell

Nadia Rajan

Sara Stikic

Jovana Glusac
Amelia Jones
Aleksandra Markovic
Maddison Inglis
Michelle Ridout
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GUNDRY’S CARPET CHOICE MIDLAND OPEN (CONT.)

Girls Doubles
12/U
14/U
16/U

ITN Bands
Male ITN 8.5-9.5

Erika Bollweg /Sara Stikic
Imogen Howes / Melanie Usher
Minnie Burrell / Isabella Costa

Lachlan Ryan

BUSSELTON OPEN

Men'’s Singles
Championship

Handicap Gold
Handicap Silver

Men’s Doubles
Championship
Handicap
Senior Blue
Senior Brown
Senior Gold
Senior Green
Senior Red

Ladies Singles
Championship

Consolation
Handicap

Ladies Doubles
Championship
Handicap
Senior Blue
Senior Green
Senior Orange
Senior Pink
Senior Red
Senior Teal
Senior White
Senior Yellow

Mixed Doubles
Championship
Handicap Purple
Handicap Tan
Seniors Green
Seniors Yellow

Scott Utley
John Fay
Darren Toner

Daret Gooch / Robert Gooch
Jeff Glossop / Glenn Blight
Ross Gerrans / Alan Morcombe
Greg Powell / Ross Graffin
Robert Marshall / Peter Duffy
Vidal Hockless / Anthony Pass
lan Johnstone / Bryan James

Siobhan Drake-Brockman
Sarah Robertson
Sue Thomas

Vanessa Deegan / Janine Keall
Susan Davis / Sally Tindall

Jenny Irvine / Kymm Sweeting
Joanna Tennyson / Sally Sigelski
Kerone Melvin / Colleen Edwards
Merryl Peet / Kathy Heritage
Joanne Smith / Tracy Adams
Beverley Sharpe / Wendy Williams
Di Coote / Liba La Rose

Leonie Don / Noelleen Gardner

Christopher Martin / Siobhan Drake-Brockman
Mervyn Blackwell / Julie Blackwell

Shane Weinman / Sue Thomas

Clifford Hoult / Alison Kirk

Kevin Wren / Joanne Wren

2011 ESPERANCE MARCH OPEN

Men'’s Singles
Championship
Consolation
Div. 2

Div. 2 Consolation

Men’s Doubles
Championship
Div. 2

Over 45

Ben Dallinger
Scott Culpin

lain Clark
Andrew D’lgnazio

Ben Dallinger / Yasu Sakaguchi
Jim Creedon / Hiroyasu Sakaguchi
Jim Creedon / Nigel Thomas

Women’s Singles
Championship
Div. 2

Div.2 Consolation

Women'’s Doubles

Championship
Div. 2
Over 45

Mixed Doubles
Championship
Over 45

Boys Singles
10/U

12/U
12/U Consolation
14/U
14/U Consolation
16/U
16/U Consolation

Boys Doubles
10/U

12/U
14/U
16/U

Girls Singles
10/U

12/U
12/U consolation
14/U
14/U Consolation
16/U

Girls Doubles
12/U
14/U

Men'’s Singles
Open
Consolation

Men’s Doubles
Open

Women’s Singles
Open

Women'’s Doubles

Open

Boys Singles
10/U

12/U
12/U consolation
14/U
14/U consolation
16/U

Tara Dunhill
Hayley Wandel
Miyuki Sakaguchi

Ann Welke / Carla Welke
Peta Adams / Bernadette Delaney
Adriana Cepeda / Bernadette Delaney

Bradley Scheer / Jo Scheer
Mike Gibbs / Linda Dunhill

Brodie Schoolkate
Rigby Dowland
Dylan Hillman
Corey Bavin

Mark Collins
Bernard Richter
Dan Burke

James Collins / Nico Fouche

Rigby Dowland /Tristan Schoolkate
Corey Bavin / Kyle Hayes

Sam Dolzadelli / Bernard Richter

Amy Dunbhill
Hannah Dunhill
Bethany Conway
Tara Dunhill
Cara Matherson
Cara Welke

Adele Offerman / Yazlyn Way
Tara Dunhill / Cara Matherson

Rhys Johnson
James Mitchell

Robert Allan / Dylan McCloskey

Marisa Gianotti

Caitlin Cridland

Oscar Giorgio

Dino Bisignano

Ollie Henderson

Tyler Tranquille

Douglas Glogowski-Watson
James Mitchell
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2011 ESPERANCE MARCH OPEN (CONT.)

2011 NOLLAMARA GRASS COURT OPEN



2011 NOLLAMARA GRASS COURT OPEN (CONT.)

Boys Singles (cont.)

16/U Consolation
18/U

Boys Doubles
12/U

14/U

Girls Singles
10/U

12/U
14/U
14/U consolation

MITCHELL & BROWN GERALDTON EASTER OPEN

Men'’s Singles
Championship
Consolation
Div. 1

Div. 2

Over 45

Men'’s Doubles
Championship
Div. 1

Div 2.

Div 3.

Div. 4

Combined Age 80-100
Combined Age 100+

Women’s Singles
Championship
Consolation

Div. 1

Div.2

Women’s Doubles
Championship
Div. 1

Div 2.

Div 3.

Combined Age 80-100
Combined Age 100+

Mixed Doubles
Championship
Combined Age 80-100
Combined Age 100+

Boys Singles
10/U

12/U
14/U
16/U
18/U

Boys Doubles
12/U
16/U

Tournament Results and Awards

Ryan Mabee
Louis Asser

Milan Durmic / Samuel Hadfield
Alex Downey / Tyler Hind

Nadia Rajan

Audrey Stanisis
Tasha Howtow
Madeline Miller

Zach Itzstein
Linus Goh
Greg Godwin
Scott Mitchell
Peter Harris

Josh Nelson / James Stuttard

Danny Bowen / Josh Bowen

Damien Baker / Rod Baker

Alex Meale / Warren Meale

Nathan Hogg / Ryan Lucas

Lawrence Florentino / Richard Harding
Ralph Billes / Mark Corbett

Storm Sanders
Alison Moulin
Jenny Irvine
Jenna Valentin

Marisa Gianotti / Katy O’Shea
Emma Bowen / Jenny Irvine

Jan Bowen / Charmaine Baker
Grace McAuliffe / Angela Watson
Charmaine Baker / Karen Campbell
Ralph Billes / Mark Corbett

Storm Sanders / Sam Ashenden
Gaylene Crear / Brad Crear
Jenny Irvine / Gary Fraser

Michael Frayne
Dylan Wood
Ben Bannan
Matt Haynes
Blake Chesire

Nicholas DeLima / Austin Vos
Matt Haynes / Tom Miller

o) Sdebe sy

MITCHELL & BROWN GERALDTON EASTER OPEN

Girls Singles
12/U

12/U Div 2
14/U
16/U

Girls Doubles
14/U
16/U

Darcy Kerr
Samantha Vlahos
Phoebe Viahov
Chelsea Church

Chelsea Church / Hannah Stone
Bernelee Carlson / Alisha Wylds

Junior Mixed Doubles:

10/U

Angela Maestro / Michael Frayne

2011 BRIDGETOWN EASTER OPEN

Men'’s Singles
Championship
Div. 1

Div. 2 Consolation

Men'’s Doubles
Championship
Div 2.
Div 3.
Div. 4
Over 45 Div. 1
Over 45 Div. 2

Women's Singles
Championship

Div.2

Women'’s Doubles
Championship
Div 2.

Div. 3

Over 40 Div. 1
Over 40 Div. 2

Mixed Doubles
Championship
Div 2.

Div. 3

Div. 4

Div 5.

Vets Div. 1
Vets Div. 2
Vets Div. 3

Boys Singles
12/U Consolation

15/U
15/U Consolation
18/U

Boys Doubles
12/U

15/U

Girls Singles
15/U

15/U Consolation
18/U

Paul Starkie
Phil Wearing
Ken Adam

Greg McAlpine / Shane Smedley

Les Bairstow / David Kerr

Scott Awcock / Glen Clarke

Aldo Marsegaglia / Thomas McAlpine
Hrvoje Spoljaric / Ratko Vukovic
Martin Dickensen / John Koprowski

Bojana Bobusic
Claire Lorimar

Barbara Radicevic / Teodora Vukovic
Eileen Bairstow / Sam Capararo
Angela Brett / Sophie Brett
Eileen Bairstow / Sam Capararo
Dawn Goodreid / Jill Sweeney

Francis Soale / Bojana Bobusic
Les Bairstow / Sam Capararo

Tim Inglis / Tess Inglis

Tim Cornish / Lauren Kuhl

Aaron Robrts . Diane Awcock
Hrvoje Spoljaric /Jill Taylor
Shane Smedley / Vilma Rovedatti
Paul Lewis / Annlouise Love

Charlie Wanby
Thomas Vellios
Max Tolstoy
Tim Inglis

Andrew Singh / Charlie Wanby
Jacob Ambrose / Liam Campbell

Laura Radicevic
Madelaine Miller
Rebekah Martin




Tournament Results and Awards

2011 BRIXTON STREET JUNIOR OPEN

Boys Singles
10/U

12/U
12/U consolation
14/U
14/U consolation
16/U
16/U Consolation

Boys Doubles
10/U

12/U
14/U
16/U

Girls Singles
10/U

12/U
12/U Consolation
14/U
14/U consolation

Girls Doubles
10/U
12/U
14/U

Justin Yanze
Jack Hardy

Ollie Henderson
Dominic Bechard
Ethan Sylvester
Bernard Richter
Joshua Santiago

Antonio Josifovski / Sashe Josifovski
Jack Hardy / Alexander Stanisis
Corey Bavin / Dominic Bechard
Shawn Howtow / Bernard Richter

Anna Kirk

Askin Arslan
Gurkawal Kaur-Bajaj
Christa Santiago
Hina Sakaguchi

Hayley O'Donnell / Lexi Weir
Askin Arslan / Gurkawal Kaur-Bajaj
Annabelle Lim / Emeleen Wilson

NEDLANDS JUNIOR OPEN

Boys Singles
10/U

12/U
12/U Consolation
14/U
14/U Consolation
16/U
16/U consolation

Boys Doubles
12/U

14/U

Girls Singles
10/U

12/U
12/U Consolation
14/U
14/U consolation

Girls Doubles
12/U
14/U

William Hann
Rigby Dowland
Christian Harding
Connor McAlpine
Matt Wang
Dominic Bechard
Adrian Spencer

Lachlan Casey / Righy Dowland
Ben Bannan / Rei Masuda

Chesca Hanlin
Chelsea Church
Chesca Hanlin
Tara Dunhill
Awhina Carpenter

Chelsea Church / Olivia Rimmer
Daisy Coffey / Tara Dunhill

PEEL OPEN JUNIOR NOVICE EVENT

Boys Singles
10/U

12/U
14/U
16/U

Ethan Foo
Daniel Ullyett
Daniel Elliot
Jarrod Youlden
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PEEL OPEN JUNIOR NOVICE EVENT (CONT.)

Boys Doubles
10/U

12/U
16/U

Girls Singles
10/U

12/U
14/U
16/U

Girls Doubles
10/U
12/U
14/U
16/U

Mixed Doubles
10/U
12/U
14/U
16/U

Corey Hill / Luke Persh
Daniel Ullyett / Seth Laider
Tane Thomas / Keagan Young

Scarlett Tanner
Rachel Mellor
Lily Tanner
Alexandra Jovicic

Shaye Miligan / Tanisha Van Arkel
Rachel Mellor / Lara Van Der Walt
Brooke Plenderleith / Paige Slater
Alexandra Jovicic / Sophie Murray

Ethan Foo / Scarlett Tanner

Seth Wheatley / Rahcel Mellor
Tyler Donkin / Brooke Plenderleith
Jarold Youlden / Sophie Murray

CBH GRouUP COUNTRY ZONE CHALLENGE (TEAMS)

A Grade
12/U
14/U
16/U
Open

B Grade
12/U
14/U
16/U
Open

Overall Winner

South West
Lower Great Southern
South West
South West

South West
South West
South West
South West

South West

BENDIGO BANK SOUTH MANDURAH 24™ JUNIOR OPEN

Boys Singles
11/U

13/U
15/U
17/U

Boys Doubles
13/U

17/U

Girls Singles
11/U

13/U
14/U
17/U

Girls Doubles
13/U
17/U

Owen Kirkham
Carlton O’Keefe
Max Munro
Kyle Hayes

Max Munro / Riley Edwards
Liam Davis / Kayne Vague

Rhiannon Ryder
Madeline Muller-Hughes
Danika Humphries
Dayna Slingsbury

Mirrante Ryder / Madeline Muller-Hughes
Bernadette O’Farrell / Dayna Slingsby




BENDIGO BANK SOUTH MANDURAH 24™ JUNIOR OPEN

Mixed Doubles
13/U
15/U
17/U

Max Munro / Madeline Muller-Hughes
Harry Keefe / Louise Keefe
Kyle Hayes / Jasmin Medew

SPORTS SURFACES NORTH OF THE RIVER JUNIOR CLOSED

Boys Singles
10/U

12/U
12/U consolation
14/U
14/U Consolation
16/U
16/U Consolation

Boys Doubles
12/U

14/U
16/U

Girls Singles
10/U

12/U
12/U consolation
14/U
14/U Consolation

Girls Doubles
10/U
12/U
14/U

William Hann
Jack Hardy

Tristan Schoolkate
Luke Keddie
Valentin Wagner
Dominic Bechard
Adrian Spencer

Jack Hardy / Alex Stanisis
Luke Keddie / Ethan Sylvester
Dominic Bechard / Damien Rocky

Kiera Dunhill
Chelsea Church
Brittany Pringle
Tara Dunhill
Leah Crabb

Amy Dunbhill / Kiera Dunhill
Chelsea Church / Hanna Dunbhill
Leah Crabb / Tara Dunhill

SOUTH OF THE RIVER JUNIOR CLOSED

Boys Singles
12/U

12/U consolation
12/U Div. 2
14/U

14/U Consolation
16/U

Boys Doubles
12/U

14/U

Girls Singles
12/U

14/U
14/U consolation
16/U

Girls Doubles
14/U

Dino Bisignano
Adam Kehane
Max Tolstoy
Tyler Tranquille
Blake Di Virgilo
Anthony De Lima

Dino Bisignano / Kyle Potter
Ben Bannan / Blake Di Virgilo

Kaylene Chong
Annabelle Lim
Tasha Howtow
Bernelee Carlson

Tasha Howtow / Laura Radicevic

MINELECT WA STATE HARDCOURTS (GOLDFIELDS TC)

Tournament Results and Awards &

Due to wet weather this event was incomplete.
Points and prize money were awarded according to the OJT & AMT
2011 Australian Guidelines
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| hereby present the Tennis West
Financial Summary Report for the
2010-11 financial year.

The 2010-11 financial year saw Tennis West (TW) post
another surplus, with a healthy annual net surplus of
$133,915 recorded, against a forecast budget surplus
of $10,512. This result was pleasing following on, as it
did, from a surplus in the previous year, after three
difficult years before that. Tennis West has restored
its balance sheet to the healthy position enjoyed
before the funding cuts from Tennis Australia three
years ago. Net assets shown on the Balance Sheet
grew from $904,558 to $1,038,473 over the year, and
cash on the hand was $802,179 at 30 June 2011,
against $772,457 at 30 June 2010.

The strong financial performance was driven by a
number of factors. By far the most significant was the
larger than budgeted grant income, from Tennis
Australia and the Department of Sport and
Recreation (DSR) in particular. Tennis Australia grant
income was boosted by a full year of the Community
Tennis grant designed to invest in people on the
ground, as well as a new Local Area Marketing grant.
DSR grants exceeded last year’s levels, largely due to
funds received for a new irrigation system, but
assistance was also provided for court resurfacing at
the STC.

Affiliation and related income (Tennis League fees,
Tournament Sanction fees etc) was close to
budgeted levels. This reflected only a slight drop off
in affiliation numbers from 20,150 to 20,025, a
satisfactory result in view of declining club
membership across most sports. Tennis League entry
fees missed budget expectations by over $8,000
reflecting slightly lower team entries and decreased
income from a shortened State League season.

State Tennis Centre (STC) functions income improved
on the previous year and was close to budgeted
levels. The pick-up in activity resulted from the
general improvement in the economy after the crisis
of the previous year. Commercial sponsorship,
however, did not meet our budget, the loss of the
Wilson Ball sponsorship being the main reason. We
were unable to sign a deal anything like comparable
with the earlier Wilson deal.
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It should be noted that effective expense control was
again a feature of the net result.

Salaries, the main expenditure item in what is a
service business, were over budget, but that reflected
greater use of full and part time employed people
than budgeted (at the expense of casual employees),
as well as increased remuneration facilitated by TA
grant support for this purpose. Maintenance
expenditure on the State Tennis Centre was
significantly higher than forecast, at $69,417,
reflecting the fact that the courts, in particular, are
approaching end of their typical surface life-cycle.

Tennis West remains grateful to its main funding
partners — Tennis Australia, DSR and Healthway — as
well as all its commercial sponsors. The world
remained in the grip if uncertainty — with concerns
over government debt levels in particular affecting
markets - but Tennis West managed to get through
unscathed, managing its investments prudently and
continuing to replenish its reserves.

Typically, however, the expenses that can be
controlled were controlled relatively well. Printing
costs is one such area. The combination of a better
deal on our print equipment, more in-house printing
on this improved machine and a much greater use of
electronic communication has seen print expenses
trend lower in the last 3 years.

Tennis West's investment approach was again
conservative, with most of its funds available for
investment held in major bank Term Deposits,
yielding interest income for the year of $50,774.
Limited capital expenditure was undertaken, in part
due to the uncertainty in relation to the future of the
STC, and this contributed to the increase in the cash
position at year end.

In summary, the Association enjoyed another
relatively strong year from a financial perspective.
Tennis Australia invested more in our Community
Tennis activities and this is likely to continue in the
foreseeable future, appropriately in our view. The
Association’s Balance Sheet is strong and investment
policy will remain prudent. This means Tennis West is
well positioned to continue its investment in
developing the game in WA in coming years.

Bill Price
Treasurer, Tennis West




W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated
ABN 90 803 634 736

30 June 2011
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Financial Statements

W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated

Statement of comprehensive income
Far the year ended 30 June 2011

MNote 14 2010
Playver developmeant revenua G 121,912 106 654
Tennis competibons revenue & 299,061 268 845
Tennis business revenue & 329 860 338,727
Tennis clubs & community revenus & 501,520 377.850
Marketing revenue & _ epe8 000000 42957
Total revenua 1,281,321 1125034
Otvar income T 1,135,170 1,006 382
Flayer devalopment expenses (258,172) (215,360
Tennis competitions expenses (324 445) (327 424)
Tenmis business sxpensss [623.,667) (817 ,423)
Tennis clubs & community expenses (445 485) (333.211)
Markeling expenses (4, 558) (80,503)
Finance & administration expenses = ___(607,023) {637 B35
Total expenses = (2343350 (2,111 857
Finance income g m—— 50,774 34,085
Net finance income L 34,085
Met surplus/{deficit) for the period 133,815 _ GIE44
Cthar comprehensive incoms =
Total comprehensive income for the period 133,915 A3 Bdd

The statement of comprebensive income i 1o be read In conjunction with the Aotes of fhe financial statements sel oul on pages 5 ta 22
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Financial Statements

W A. Tennis Association Incorporated

Statement of financial position
As at 30 June 2011

Note
Assats
Cash and cash equivalents i
Trade recesvables and other assets iz
Irentanes 13
Total current assels
Property, plant and equipment 14
Total non-current assets
Total assets
Liabilities
Trade and other payables 15
Employes benefits 15
[neome received in advance 17
Total current labilities
Emploves benedits 16
Income receied in advance i7

Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

MNet assels

Membars' Equity
Retained earnings
Reserves

Totzl members® pquity

2011 2010
802 179 772 457
127117 112,672
10 421 11,876
938 717 HO7,005
4,560,128 4,626 482
4,560,128 4,626 482
5490845 5523487
158 525 163,037
¥5.TEQ TO 344
152,715 185,593
188,008 415,874
18,853 19,083
4054470 4,178.972
4,073,363 4,199,055
4 481 372 T 4618.929
1,038,473 804,558
843,908 B0, 258
194,565 214,260
1,038,473 804,558

IJ tennis
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Tha staterment of financlal pesition is i be read in conjunction with the notes Lo the fnancial statements set out on pages §

to 22
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Financial Statements ,/ -

W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated

Staterment of cash flows
For the year ended 30 June 2011

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash receipts from customers

Cash paid to suppliers and employees
Interest racaivad

Cash recaipts from government grants

Net cash (used injfrom operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Net cash (used injffrom Iinvesting activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Met cash (used in)ffrom financing activities

Mel increase/{decraase) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash eguivalents at 1 July
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June

MNote

22

14

11

RaTRRT AT Y

2041 2010
1,891 848 1,833,071
(2.381,383) (2,058,306}

95,219 26,184

865,877 417,355

131681 218 344

(101,939 {16,301

= LIOL 8T (16,301}
a7z 202,083

e TTRAST 570414
B02,17% 772,457

The statermant of cash flows is 1o be read in comunclion wilh the rotes to the inancial statements set out on pages 5 to 22
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W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated
Notes to the financial statements

p

(a)

(b)

(<)

(d)

Reparting entity

The W A, Tennis Association Incorporaied "Association’ ) is an Associglion domiciled in Ausiratia The
Agsociation i Incorporated under the Associations incorporation Act 1967, The address of the
Asseolstlhbn's registered office is;

Slate Tennis Centre
‘ictoria Park Drive
Burswood WA E100.

The principal activities of the Associatan dunng the coursa of the finandial year were the promotion and
development of the game of tennis in Western Australia.

Basis of preparation
The financial statemanis were approved by the Members of the Commiftes (e "Board of Dirsctors™) on
6" September 2011,

Statement of compliance

The financial repart i a genaral purpose financial report which has been prepared in accondancs wilh
Australian Accounting Slandards ['AA5Bs") Gncluding Australian Interpretations) adopted by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASE).

Basis of measuremeant
The financial report has been prepared on the historical cost basis.

Functional and presentation currency
The financial repert is presented in Australian dallars, which |3 the Assocation's lunctional currency,

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial stalerments requires managemant to make judgements, estmates and
assumptions that affect ihe application of accounting policies and the reporied amounts of assets,
liakilities, income and expanses. Actual results may differ from these estimates

Estimates and underlying assumplions are reviewsd on an ongaing basis. Revisions o accounting
eslimates are recognised in the period in which the eshmate is revised and in any fulure periods affected.
in particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncerianty and crtcal judgaments in
applying accounting policies thal have the mosl significanl effect on the amouwnt recognized in the
financial statemants are described In the following note:
= Nate 14 - propedy, plant and equipment (impairment assessment and determination of useful
lves)
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W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated

Notes to the financial statements
3. Significant accounting policies

Tha accounting policses sat out below have been applied consistently 1o all periods presented in these
firancial statements. Certain comparative ameunts have been reclassfied to conform with the current
yoar's presantation

{a) Financial instruments
{fip  Mon-dervahve financal inslruments

Mesri-dhzrivative financial instruments comprise trade and other recelvables, cash and cash equivalents
and trade and other payables.
Mon-derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair valug Subsequent to inial reesgnitian
nan-cigrmative financial instrumenis are measured as described below
A finanelad mstrument is recognisad if the Association becomes a party I the confractual provisions of
the Inslrument. Financial assets are derecognised if the Assoclation's contraciual rights 1o the cash flows
from the financial assets expire or if the Assaciation transfers the financial assal (o anather party without
retaning conirel or substantizlly all risks ard rewards of the asset. Financlal llabilbes are derecognised if
the Association's obligations specified in the contract expire or ane discharged o sanzelad,
Cash and cash egquivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits.

{1}  Loans and receivables
Other non-derivative financial instruments are measured at amorlised cosl wsing the affective interest
miathod, kess any impaiment losaes,

(b} Property, plant and equipment
] Rer;ug.‘liijnn and meaasuremant

liems of property, plant and eguipment are measurad st cost or deamed cost lass sccumulatad
depreciation (see below) and impairment losses.
Cost includes expenditures that are directly aftributable to the acquisition of the asset The cost of self-
constructed assets includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the inilial estimata, whera relevant, of the
costs of dismantling and remaving the iberms and restoring the site on which they are Iocated, and an
apprapriate proponion of producton cverheads. Furchased software that is integral to the funationatity of
the ralated eguipment 5 capitalised as part of that equipmeant.
Where parts of an tem of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted
for as separale itemns {major components) of property, plant and equipment

i} Subssguent costs
The cosl of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in he carrying
amaunt of the itam if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part wifl flow fo
the Association and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day senicing of proparty,
plant and aguipment are recognised in profit or Ioss 85 incurmed,

(it Depresiatian
Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-ine basis over the estimated useful lives of each
part of an temn of property, plant and equigment.

The estimated useful lives in the cummant and comparative periods are as follows:

+«  Leasehold Improvernents 50 years
= Plant and aquipmont 3110 yoars
«  Cours 43-45 years

The residual value, the useful life and tha depraciaiion methad applied to an asset are reassessed al
least annually.
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W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated

MNotes to the financial statements

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of mventoness s basad
on the first-in first-out principle, and includes expanditure incurred in acquiring the inveniories and
beingimg them to their existing location and condition. Met realisabla value is the estimated eslfing price in
the ordinary course of business, less the esbmated cosls of completion and sslling expenses.

Impairment

Financlal assels (including recenvables)

A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more evenis
hawe had a negative effect on the astimated fulure cash flows of that asset

An impairment loss in respec] of a financial asset measured at amertised cost is calculated as the
difference betwesen its carmying amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted af the arginal effectiva interest rata.

Individual significant financial assate are {ested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining
financial assets are assessed collactively in groups that share similar credil nsk characternistics.

All impairment osses are recognised in profit or loss.

An impairment foss is reversed if the rewversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, and this reversal is recognised in profit or loss

Mon-financial assats

The camying amaounts of the Association's nan-financial assets, other than inventories, are reviewed at
each reporiing date (o determine whether thera ig any indication of impairment. If any sueh indication
exiata then the asset's recovenzble ameunt 1s estimatad

An impatrment koss is recognised if the carmying amount of an asset or its cash-genesrating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates
cash flows that largely are independent from other assets and groups. Impairment losses ane recognised
in profit or less. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carying amaourdt of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the camying amount
of the ather assets in the unit (group of units) on 8 oro rale basis

The mecaoverable amount of an assel or cash-generating unit & the greater of its value in use and 15 fair
value bess costs o sell. |n assessing value in wse, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present vakie using a discount rate that refllects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the assat.

Impairment losses recognised in pror perods are assessed al each reporiing date for any indicalions
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impaimment loss is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determineg the recoverable amount An impairmen! 053 s reversed onfy
la the extan that the asset's camying amount does not enceed the carmpng amaunt that would hawvs been
datermined, net of deprecation or amortisation, if no impairmant loss had bean recognised.

Employee benefits

Laorsg-tenn employee benefits

The Azzociaion's nel ooligatan in respect of ong-tem service benefits is the amount of future benefit
that employees have eamad in retum for their sensice In the current and prior perads. The abligation is
calculated using expected fulure increases in wage and salary rates including related on-costs and
expecied sefilement dates, and is discounted using the rates attached to the Commonwealth
Govemment bonds &t the balance sheet date which have maturity dates approximating o the terms of
the Associntion's obligations

Shart-term benefits

Liabilles for employes benefits for wages, salares and annual leave represent present obligations
rasulling from empliyoss ssrvices provided o reporling dabe and are Galculated at undiscounted
amounis based on wage and salary rates that the Association expects o pay as al reporing date
including related on-costs, such as workers compansabton insurance and payroll tax.

A provision is recegnised for e amount expectad 1o be paid under short-tarm cash bonus or profit-
shanng plans if the Associalion has 6 presant legal or consiructive obligaton to pay this amount as a
result of past service provided by ihe employee and the cbligation can be estimated refiably.

tennis
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W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated
Motes to the financial statemeants

Significant accounting policies [continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised iT, as a resulf of a past event, the Association has a present legal or
congtructive abligation that can be estimated reliably, and |1 is probable thal an outllow of sconomis
bensfits will b2 required to settle the chligation. Provisions are determined by discauntng the expected
fulure cash fiows at a rate that reflects curment market assessments of the time value of money and the
rigks specific to the liability

Revenue and other income

Goods sald

Revanue fram the sale of goods s measwred at the fair value of the consideration recaived or receivable,
net of retums and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. Revenue is recognisad when tha
significard risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the
consideration is probable, the associated costs and possile raturn of goods can be estimatad raliably,
and thera is no continuing management invehemant with tha goods.

Senvices

Revenua fram services rendered s recognised in the profit or loss in proportion to the stage of
completion of the transaction at reporting date. The stage of completion is assessed by reference to
surveys of work parformed

Revenue recelvad in advance relating to the promotion of tennis at the State Tennis Centre has bean
geferred and is recognised on a straight-line basis over the penod that the services are rendared.
Grants

Reoaprocal granta

Grants received on the condition that specified services should be deliverad or conditions fulfilled are
considered reciprocal Such grants are initially recognised as a fiebility and revenue recognised as
serices are performed ar conditions fulfiflad.

Mon-reciprosal granis

Whare a grant is received where there i3 no performance obligation or refum obligation, revenue is
recognised when the grant is received or receivable,

Lease payments

Payments made under operabing leases are récognised in profit or kass on a straghi-line basis over the
term of 1he lease. Lease incentives received are recognisad as an inlegral part of the total lease
expense, over the term of the lease.

Finance income and expenses

Firance income comprises interast mcome on funds invasted. Interest income is recognised as it
accrues, usng the efective interest mathod.

Finance expansas comprisa interesi paid on borrowings

Income tax

The ~zacciation s income relates (o 1s aclhilies a5 an Association established for the encouragement of
sport, In foflowing the Income Tax Assessmant Act of 1997 Div 50 5.50-45, the Associations income 1S
therefore considered exempt fram income tax,

Withhalding tax from other jursdictions is provided when the Rabslity i3 due and payable,
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W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated
Motes to the financial statements

Significant accounting policies [continued)

Goods and services tax

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amaount of goods and services lax (G5T),
except whera the amount of G5T incurred is not recoverable from the faxation authority. |0 lhase
circumstances, the G5T s recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as par of the
BXPErEE,

Recgivables and payables are stated with the amoent of GST included.

Cash flows are mcluded in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis, The GST components of cash
flows arising from invesling and financing activities which are recoverable fram, or payable to, the
Australian Taxalion Office are classified as operating cash fiows.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual
perieds beginning after 1 Juty 2010, and have not besn applied in prepanng these financial statements.
Mona of these are expecied o have a significant effect on the financlals slatements of the Association,
aexcept AASH B Financial Inshruments, which becomes mandatary for the Association's 2014 financial
stataments and cowld change the classification and measurement of financial assats, The Associalion
does not plan to edopt this standard early and the extent of the impact has not been delermined.

Determination of fair values

A number of the Association's accaunting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value,
for beth financial and non-financial assets and Rakalities, Fair values have baen determined for
meaasurement andfor disclosure purposes based on the following methods. Where applicable, furher
imformation about the assumplions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the noles specific fo
that as=ei ar lighility,

Trade and other receivables
For receivables with a remaining useful life of less than one year, the nofional amount iz deemed fo reflect
the falr value. All oiher mecenablas are discounied to detarmine the fair valus
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W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated
Motes to the financial statements

Financial risk management
The Association has exposure {0 the folowing risks from their use of financial imstruments:
Credit nsk
Liguidity risk
Market risk
o Dperational sk
Thiz nota presents infarmaton about the Associalion’s exposurs 1o sach of the sbowa risks, their
objectivas, poicies and processes for measunng and managing risk, and the management of capital.
Furthar quantitative dizclosuras are included throughoul this financia! report

The Board of Directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and aversight of the risk
management framenwork.

Risk management policies are astabished 1o identify and analyse the nsks faced by the Association, fo
set appropriate risk imits and controls, and to meniter risks and adherence to limits, Risk management
policies and aystems are raviawed regulary to raflect charges In market condiions and the Association's
activities. The Asscciation, through their training and management standards and procedures, aim o
devalop a disciplined and constructive contral anviranment i which ail employees understand their roles
end obligetions.

Credit risk
Credil isk is the rek of financlal loss 1o the Association if 8 customer ar courderparty to a financial

instrurnest fails to mest its contracival obdigations, and anses principally from the Association’s
recaivables fram cusiomers and investmen! securities,

Trade and other receivables

The Association’s expasure (o credit nsk is influenced mainty by the Inoaaduzd characierstics of each
cusiomer. The demographics of the Association s cusfomer base, including the default risk of the Indusiry
and country, in which customers operate, has less of an influsnce on cradit risk. Approximately 21 percent
(201019 percent) of the Assocation’s revanue is attributable to transactons with a single customer

The Association has established an aflowance for mnpairment that represents ifts estimate of meurred
losses in respact of trade and other receivables and mvestments. The main components of this allowance
are g spacific loss companent that relales to individual exposures, The coliective loss allowance is
determined based on historical data of payment statistics for similar financial assets.

Thiz majority of the Association’s cusiomers have been ransacting with the Asscciation for 3 number of
years, and losses hawa bean minimal.

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is tha risk that the Asscciation will not be able 1o meat its financial coligations as they fall
dus, The Associafion'z approach o managing lguiddity [ 1o ensuie, 85 Tar &3 possible, that it will ahvays
have sufficient hquidity to meet its Eabifities when due, under bath normal and siresaed conditions, without
incurring unaccepiahle losses or risking damaga to the Assoclation's regutation

Typicaily the Association ensures that i has sufficient cash on demand 1o meel expacted operational
expenses for a period of 60 days, including the servicing of financial obligatons. this excludes the
patential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reascnably be predicied, such as natural disasters
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W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated
Notes to the financial statements

Financial risk management {continued)

Market rizk

Market risk ks the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and

wsouity prices will affect the Association's income or the value of s boldings of nanclal irsiruments. Tha
objective of market risk management & to manage and control markel nsk exposunes within acceptable

parameters, while opbmmigsing the returm,

Currency risk
The Association is nat exposed to currency nsk on sakes, purchases and borrowings as they only transact
in their denominated currency the Australian dallas (ALIDY)

interast Risk

The Association adopts a policy of ensuring that babwaen B0 and 80 parcent of Hs axposura 1o changes in
interesi mies on bormowings is on a fixad-rate basis, takng inlo account assels with expasure Lo changes
in interest rates.

Operational risk

Operational rigk & the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associaled with
the Associahon’s processes, persannal, technology and infrastruciure, and from exdernal faciors oiher
than credit, market and liquidty risks such as those ansing from kegal and regulatory requiremeants and
genarally accepted standards of corporate behaviour. Operational risks arise from all of the Association’s
ocperations.

The Asscciabicn's abjactiva is to manags the cparalions risk so as lo balance the avoidance of financial
lzgsas and damage to the Association’s reputation with overall cost sHectiveness and to swoid contral
proceduras that restnct inthatiee and creativity.

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls to address operational risk
iz assigned to senior management withan each business unit. This responsibility is supported by tha
devaiopimeant of gverall Association's standards for the management of aperabonzl nzk in the followng
dreas;

=  Requirements for appropriate segregation of dulies, including independent autharisalion of
fransactons,

=  Requirements for the reconciliztion and monitoring of iransactions,

Compdiance with regulatory and other legal requirements,

Requirements for the pericdic assessment of operational risks faced. and the adequacy of

controls and procedures 1o address the risks dentfied;

Requiremants for the reporting of operational losses and proposad remedial action

Devalopmant of contingency plans.

Training and professional development

Ethical and busmess standards; and

Risk mitigation, including nsuranca whara this is effective.

Capital managermant
The Association is not subject o externally imposed capital reguirermeants.
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Revenue

Player development revenus
- Tennis Australia grants
- Enbry fees
- Ofhar incoma

Tennis competiions revanus
- Tennis Australia grants
- Enitry feas
- Sponz=arship
- Ciher income

Tennis business revenua
- Catering income
- Rioom hire income
- Equipmant salea
- Spanscrship
- Other income

Tennis clubs & community revenue
- Tenmia Austraka grants
- Oitherincome

Parketing revenua
- Sponsorship
- Fundraising income
- Ticke1 sales incomie
= Oither Income

Total revenue

Other income

Affiliation fees

Recovery of msurance costs
Tennis Ausiraila grants
Healthway grant

Other governement granis
Bundry income

Total cther income

Government grants

2011 210
56499 81,277
17,300 12,237
EEE e i - S 32,150
121,812 105,654
10,000 10,000
221,013 195,222
45206 40,045
SE— - .. 23,579
289,061 268,846
82,665 83,416
55 500 79,8508
14,135 25,677
34,932 41,808
. 102,628 L
328 BED 338,727
423,469 336,669
am 78,151 4181
501,620 277,850
1,200 5,445
15,750 9874
20,503 27,638
LB 1415 -
38,865 42,957
1.291.321 1,135.034
2011 2010
387 484 a73.095
97,224 4,506
- 25,395
130,150 150,000
509,788 354,954
= __Joga4 00 843
1,135,170 1,006,382

The Association has bean awarded government grants from the WA Department of Sport and Recreation
(SR) and Healthway. The DS grants cover the Associations business plan funding, a Pro Gircult
carmmunity action programme, high parformanca funding and an indigenous program grand for a

dedicated mdigencus program.

The Healthway grant was provided to fund varicus programs mainly focused on paricipation and junior

dewvelopment programs

Page 59

RaTLE] A Y



Financial Statements f/:\"' -

RaTLE] A Y

13
W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated
Motes to the financial statements
8 Other expenses
The Assocation has the following key expanses:
201 2010
Depreciglion xpense
- lzasehald improvements 105,752 105,752
- plant and equipment 37,081 39,810
- courts 25,480 25,480
Cost of goods sold
- cost af inventornes 108.918 106,859
Movement in provision faor emplovee benefits 5,235 19,872
Insurance sxpenss 65,699 71,627
Crparating leasae rental expense 200 425
4. Finance income and expense
2011 Mo
Interzst income on bank depasits 50,774 34,085
Finance income 50774 34 D85
Finance sxpense I - -
Met finance income and expense 50,774 34,085
Mo finance income and expensas ara recognised thraugh equity. This is consistent with the
statemeant of changes in equity on page 2
10. Auditors’ remuneration
2011 2090
Audit services
Auditors of the Association
KPMG Austraia:
Audit and rewiew of financial reports o 11,000 11,000
11,000 11,000
Other services
Auditars af the Association
KPMG Austraiia: B 12500 1,500
12,500 1,500
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W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated
MNotes to the financial statemants
11. Cash and cash equivalents
2011 2010
Bank balancas 4248, 992 155,163
Cash an hand 700 1.305
Ceposiis al call R o . 1 - i R 1 - 1 | 8
Cash and cash equivalents BD2 170 772 457
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits. The call deposits are readily
convertible into known amaounts of cash and are held at amorised cost
12. Trade and other recelvables
2011 2010
Trade receivables 48,268 21,504
Oithar recaivables 34 TE1 31,843
Prepaymeanis R R Y11 - (-] 59325
127417 112,672
13, Inventories
2011 2010
Irvertany on hand 10421 i 11,875
10,421 11,676

Page 61



)
uil]
c
=
D
']
40}
i
(p)
@
(&)
c
qv]
=
LL

5

871098y BETELR 786151 ID8'EFSE
T AT ALdBRE FOLER B5E FED'E
F TR Gl EER FOLER BCOPED'T
EZT |8 a6l 25 ELa'aLk LLFORLE
LrenEel 2l (GEF FLT V098 TOE! (Lgg'zza’L)
leaZaanl Lge 57 (19080 [ZG4 5000
e e LS00 BEE) =l T AE-AD
VREE e 2] (GO0 HEZ) VG0 GRE) UEEL LS
(I L) [OgsEs {0Lg'8E) (Z54'G0L)
LBZ D28 1) (52Z5'E2E) |SBE'SZE) (LIS LLE'L)
0fL'E5LE P2 EbLL F0Z GAOr HELLGLS
BEE'LOL e BER ' LOT -
iTEiga'n T iRl B0E'9SE HHLELG
LTH 553 PRI AR G5 TEE 22151 S
Log'oL - LOE 5 2
OES LSS PELARL L 800288 HEL LSS
a1 Bnng s BaLaLIEwOptHa|
LI JLiEL PHOgas ey

LLDZ 2uny QE Py
nE finp |y

DLOE suUnp OF Iy

BOOZ AInp & 1y
syuneue Bupliien

LLOF SUnt 0f 18 S0URjER
S[EBOGE]

yead Ay ioj aBieys Laneneadag
DLOZ Ainr | j= BoUE|Eg

QLOZ BUNr OF 18 SouE|Eg
spandeig

read ) o) slieyd vopeaeadan
RO0FE AP 1 18 abueied
(CLERETLES S DI T R

b L0 NPy e aoleieg
S|REQGE]

SuanIpE

QLOZ f0r | 1B eduBEg

(10T aunr Of 18 asusfe
G| Rty

SUanIRey

BOOZ fir | 18 souemg
1805

juawdinbe pue Juepd ‘Apadoayg

SjuSLLg]els |eIauBUY 3U) 0) SSI0N
pajelodioou] ualBIDOSSY SIUUB ] Y AN

Page 62




Financial Statements f/)\‘" -

RaTRRT AT Y

W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated

Notes to the financial statements

15. Trade and other payables

2011 2010
Trade payables a,7e2 39,230
Cther payables and accrued expenses g Py S -
159,525 163,837
16. Employes benefits
Current
211 2010
Provision for long-aendces leave 189 748 11,004
Provision for annual legve 66,021 59,340
73,754 T34
Non-current
Prowision for long-service leave 15,893 19,083
18,893 18083
17, Incomea received in advance
Currant
2011 2010
State tannis cantre 101 829 101,629
Clay courls 4 328 4,828
Rebound ace courts 18 848 168,848
Cither grant income - 25,000
Other o TN 35,088
152 7158 185,503
Mon-current
State tennis cenra 3,307 142 3408971
Clay couriz 132,899 137,726
Rebound ace courls _ B1a479 B33,275
4 054 470 4,179,972
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W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated
MNotes to the financial statements

186. Capital and reserves

Mational Registration Levy

The Mational Registration Levy reserve amount of $30,024 was no longer required for the purpose # was eslablshed,
being the need ta meet sanction fee requiraments of Tennis Australiz_ I 2010, this amount was reallocatad o the Player
Development Fund by the Board of Direclors, endarsed by Council.

State Tennis Flayer Development Trust

The former State Player Development Trust amount of $63, 570 was reallocaled to the Piayer Development Fund in
2010, there being very similar purpeses in the establishment of both funds. The Player Development Fund was
established o support, for the purposes of player development, indiiduals and inltiatives, the main beneficlaries being
Juniar tennis players.

Brian Morrall Bequéeath

In 2010 The Brian Morrell Bequest amouwnt of $12,273 was reallocated to tha Player Developmant Fund, the purpose of
each being to support individuals and initiatives for the banefit of player devalopment. Thera was no specific condition
pan the bequeath of funds, however at the tima the Board reschved to use the funds for playar developmant.

Flayer Development Fund

This resene was established to combing amounts in the abowve reserves, with the purposes of developrment and
enhancement of players in Weslern Australia

100 Cluhb
In the past, this fund includad sanction fees (I0WF) applied to enfres of qualifying tournaments. This now has funds
allocatad to it from fundraising eforts of the 100 club and the funds are 1o ba used for player development

Asset Replacement Reserve
These are reserves set aside for (he replacement ard improvemen! of assets at the State Tennis Centre

Members Equity
The Assoclatian is mcorposated under the Associations Incorporation Act 15987
In the event of the Association being wound up the liability of members is detarmined by its rules.
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W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated
Notes to the financial statements
19. Financlal instruments
Credit Risk
Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of ihe Assocation's financial assels represents the maximum &radi exposura. The
Assocetion's maxlmum sxposure Lo ciedi! risk at the reporiing date was.
Carrying amount
Note 2011 2010
Trade and ciher receivables (less prepayments) 12 83,029 83,347
Cash and cash eguivalents 19 R Tre457
BBS,208 825 804

The Associaton’s mazimum ezoosure (o credit rigk for trade and otiver recaivables [less prepayments) al (e
reporting date by gecoraphic region was 383,028 in Australia (2090 553,347,

The Association's mast sigrficant customer gocounts for 62 16% or $30,001 of the trade recaivables carrying
amount ai 30 June 2010, (2010: 19.3% or §4,056).

Impairment losses

The aging of the Association 'z frade recelvables at the reporing date was:

Gross Gross

2011 2010
Mot pasi due 36,753 7.603
Past due 31-60 days 751 8,212
Past due 61-90 days g.172 2,230

Past due 90 days - - IR - -, »
243 364 21 GEE

Tha movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade recelvables during the year was as follows:

2011 2010
Balance at 1 July (182) (1.265)
Impairment (loss)gain recoanised » il 1.083
Balance at 20 June (HE) (182}
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20. Financial instruments (continued)
Liguidity Risk

The fallowing are the contractual maturities of financial Babilities, including interest

a0 June 2011

MNote
Mon-derivative fimancial liahilities
Trade and other payablas i5
30 June 2010
MNon-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and othar payables 15

There are no non-dedvative financial Fabilifies with confraciual maturities greater than § manths.
Refer to note 5 for details on the Assoclation's approach to managing liguidity nsk

Interest Rate Risk

Profile

tennis
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&
Contractual
Carrying amount cash flows 8 mths or less
159,525 {159,525) (159, 525)
1559 525 {153 525) (159 525)
Contractial
Carmying amatint cash Nows 6 rths or less
163,037 (163937)  (183837)
163,937 {163 837) (163.8937)

Al the reporting dale the interest rate profie of the Association's inrterest-baaring financial instrumants ware:

Fized rate instruments

Firancial assets — Bank of Queensland investrant
Firancial assets — Bank of Queensland investment
Financial assets — Bank of Queensland inwestmant
Finarncial assets - Macquarie investmant sccount
Financial assels - Macguarie investmant ascount
Finarcial assets - Macquans imvesimant accound

Wariable rate instruments
Financial assats - CBA Saver bank account
Financial assets — CBA bank account

Association
Carryirg amount
2011 2010
146,924 138,356
15,150 14 266
158,368 150,000
- 163 367
53,045 100,000
o= bogO00
_ 34487 615989
327 212 1,201
99,780 153,862
426,002 155,163

Page 66



Financial Statements fﬁ* -

RaTLE] A Y

20

W A Tennis Association Incorporated
Motes 1o the financial statements

20. Financial instruments (continued)
Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
& change of 100 basis poinis in inferest rates at the reparting date woukd have increasedd(decreased) profit or
lozs by the amounits shown below. This anatysis assumes that all ather variables, i paricular foresgn
currency rates, remain constant The analysis was perfformed on the same basis for 2010
Prodid ar boss Egusity
[{HMp increase 1Hbp decrease 1Mrp imcrense 1bp decrease

30 Jume 2011
“Warahle rate instruments 4270 (4,270 - -
Cash flow sensitivity {nat) 4270 (4,270 : B
Profit or lnss Faquity

1{Hibp increase 1bp decrease 11bp increase 1Hbp decrease
30 Jume 2010
WVarniatle rate instruments 1,552 (1,552)
Cash flow sensitivity inet) 1552 {1,552)

Fair values versus carrying amounts
The carrying amount of assets and liabilities shown in the balance sheet approximate their fair value
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W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated
Notes to the financial statements
21. Operating leases
Leases as lesses
Mon-cancellable operating lessa rentals are peyable as indlows
2 2010
Less than one year 200 200
Between ane and five years E00 &oo
bore than five years 8400 £,600
7400 7,600

The Aszociation leases propermy undar non-cancellable operating leases with terms from 2-50 yoars,
Leases generally provide the Association with a rght of rnenewal at which time all terms are renegotiated.

Urder the terms and conditions of the funds received from the State Govermment towards the construction
costs and the land associated with the State Tennis Centre, the Association is reguired 1o comiply with
certain terms and canditions in cannection with the operation of the State Tennis Centre. The directars
believe all terms and conditions have been mel duning the penod,

Durimg the financial year ended 30 June 2011, 5200 was recognised as an expenae n the statament of
comprehansiva income in respect of operating leases (2010; $425),

22. Reconciliation of cash flows from operating aclivities

Note 2011 2010
Cash flows from operating activities
Surplusi{defizit) far the period 133,915 63 644
Adusted for
Depreciation 14 168,203 171,042
Operating profit before changes in working capital and provisions 302 208 234 636
{Increaseldecrease in irade and olher receivables (14.445) 1,945
{Increaseldecrease In Inventories 1,458 1,B57
[DecraaseVincreasa in trade and other payables {4.412) 76, 746
[{Decrease)increass in provisions and employes bensfits 5,235 19 972
(Decrease Mincrease in income received in advance (158,360 (116,862)
Met cash from operating activities 151_,55-1 "21_3,3-1-1
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W A, Tennis Association Incorporated

MNotes to the financial statements
23. Other related party transactions

The Asanciation being an Assaciate mamber of Tennis Ausiralia (TA) receives shamed services banefils
froem TA. These benefile include accounting and information iechnology rasources

The nameas of each person hoiding the position of officer of the Aszociation during the financial year were:
Dean Wiliams, Michael Lea, Bill Price, Ray Coflins, Jem Davies, Wayre Fims, Hayden Gibson, Siebhan
Dwake Brockman and Loretia Hughes. Direciors of the Assooiation are acting on an honorary basis.

The key management persennel for Tennis West include the following employess:
Andrew Stanbury, Brooke Koenig and Shane Smedley,

Key management personnel compensation

i ALID 2011 2010
Shetlerm emploves berefits 238,268 219,478
Fost employment bansfits 20,580 19,061
Total compansation 259,148 238,627

24, Economic dependence

The Association receives grant funding from Tennis Australia Limited, the DSR and Healthways, that forms
an infegral parn of the funding requirad for the Association to achieve its short and long term objactives.

It is the view of the Board that the Association would still be abls to continue meeiing the above cbjeclives
regardless of thes funding being receved in the fulure, albeit to a lesser extent

23. Subseguent events

There have been no events subsequent to balance date which would have a malerial effect on the
Association's financlal stalements
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W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated
Statement by the directors

Im the opinion of the directors of W.A, Tennis Asseciation Incorporated ('the Association'|

(g} the financial statements and notes set out an pages 1 1o 22, are in accordance with the
Associations Incorporation Act 1987, including:

{i} giving a true and fair view of the financial position of the Asscciation as at 20 June
2011 and of their perfarmance, for the financial year ended on that date; and

(i) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Associations Incorporation
Act 1987,

(b) there are reasonable grounds lo believe thal the Association will be able to pay its debis
as and whan they become due and payable,

% B A
Dated at Perth ,.day af_ 2 M 201

Signed in pccordance with a resolution of the directors:

Wwf // AL A,

D. Wilkarns H.T.S. Prica
Prasident Treasurer & Direcior
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Report on the financial report

We have audited the accompanying fimancizl report of WA, Tenmis Associabion Incorporated
(the Association), which comprises the statement of fnancial position as at 30 June 2011, and
the statemnent of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows for the year cnded on that date, notes 1w 25 comprising 8 summery of significant
aceouming palicies amd other explanatory information and the officers’ declaration.

Officers " responsibility for the finarcind report

The officers of the Association are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (incheding the
Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the Associations Incorparation Act J987 and for such
internal contral as the officers determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial
report that is free from material misstatement, whether dee to fraud or error,

Avclitar s responsibility

Our responsibility is 1o express a&n opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Awditing Standards, These Auditing
Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical reguirements relating to  audit
engagenwents and plan and perfonm the andit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
report i% free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
diselosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s jud gement,
including the assessment of the nsks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or ermor. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intermal controls
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in order
i design andil procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit alse includes
evaluating the appropriatensss of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the officers, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
reporl

We performed the procedures W assess whether in all material respects the financial report
provides a true and fair view, in sccordance with the dssociotfons Incorporation Act 19587 and
Australian Accounting Standards (including the Auvstralian Accounting Interpretations), a fair
view which is consistent with our understanding of the Company’s financial position and of ils
performance.

We believe that the audil evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
hasiz for our audit opinicn.

KERAG. an Austraion panneship and & rmember fimm ol the KP&G netwcok
of indepandant marrhsr firms sitEatad with PG ntemational Coopereiive
"EPRAG miemational’], @ Swass ahility
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independence

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Australian
professional accounting hodies.

Audivar's apinion
In cur opinion the Gnancial report of WAL Tennis Association Incorporated is in accordance

with the dssaciations frearpoaration Act 1987, incluoding:

(i) giving a fair presentation of the Association’s financial position as at 30 June 2011
and ol ils performance for the year ended on that date; and

(i) complying with  Auwstralian  Accounting  Slandards  (including  the  Ausiralian
Accounting Interpretations).

KPMG

Crorclon Sangster
Fartner

Melhourne

O September 2011
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